

National  
Environmental  
Policy  
Act

N  
E  
P  
A

Directory  
of Potential Stakeholders  
for DOE Actions  
under NEPA

33<sup>rd</sup> Edition  
July 2016

U.S. Department of Energy  
Office of NEPA Policy and Compliance



# memorandum

DATE: July 18, 2016

REPLY TO

ATTN OF: Office of NEPA Policy and Compliance

SUBJECT: *Directory of Potential Stakeholders for DOE Actions under NEPA: 33<sup>rd</sup> Edition*

TO: DOE NEPA Community

I am pleased to announce the issuance of the 33<sup>rd</sup> edition of the *Directory of Potential Stakeholders for DOE Actions under NEPA*, which is posted at [energy.gov/node/293785](http://energy.gov/node/293785), the DOE NEPA Website page for public participation guidance. The *Directory* complements DOE's *EIS Distribution Guidance*.

The *Directory* identifies contacts in federal agencies; states, territories, and state government associations; and nongovernmental organizations for reviewing environmental impact statements and environmental assessments, and for other NEPA public involvement and consultation activities. The appendices identify DOE contacts for American Indian tribal issues and identify web libraries and public reading rooms used for many DOE NEPA documents.

The *Directory* is intended to supplement NEPA stakeholder lists that Departmental Offices compile for individual projects or facilities. Please distribute this *Directory* to those within your organization who prepare or assist in preparation of NEPA documents. DOE Offices are encouraged to communicate directly with interested individuals and organizations to identify their format preferences before distributing documents, and to be inclusive in providing potentially interested parties with opportunities to review NEPA documents.

This year, as a result of confirming with all the NEPA points of contact listed, almost 45 percent of the entries include an update of name, address, phone, or email. The NEPA Office urges distributing this current edition of the *Directory* to NEPA Document Managers, support contractors, and others who might find it useful.

Updates to the *Directory* may be posted throughout the year, as new information warrants. Please send any updates, questions, and suggestions for further improvements to [askNEPA@hq.doe.gov](mailto:askNEPA@hq.doe.gov).



Carol M. Borgstrom  
Director  
Office of NEPA Policy and Compliance

**Directory of Potential Stakeholders  
for DOE Actions under NEPA**

**33<sup>rd</sup> Edition**

**July 2016**

U.S. Department of Energy  
Office of NEPA Policy and Compliance



*printed on recycled paper*

## PREFACE

This *Directory of Potential Stakeholders for DOE Actions under NEPA* is prepared by the Office of NEPA Policy and Compliance. The *Directory* is available on the DOE NEPA Website at [energy.gov/node/290935](https://energy.gov/node/290935). The *Directory* complements DOE's *EIS Distribution Guidance* ([energy.gov/node/259135](https://energy.gov/node/259135)).

The Council on Environmental Quality regulations implementing NEPA (40 CFR Parts 1500-1508) include provisions for public involvement:

- Agencies must ensure that environmental information is available to public officials and citizens before decisions are made and before actions are taken [40 CFR 1500.1(b)].
- Agencies must involve environmental agencies, applicants, and the public, to the extent practicable, in preparing environmental assessments and must affirmatively solicit comments on draft environmental impact statements from those persons or organizations who may be interested or affected [40 CFR 1501.4(b) and 1503.1(a)].
- Agencies must provide public notice of NEPA-related hearings, public meetings, and the availability of environmental documents so as to inform those persons and agencies who may be interested or affected and must solicit appropriate information from the public [40 CFR 1506.6(b) and (d)].

To supplement the lists of potentially interested parties that DOE offices compile for individual proposals, the *Directory* lists current contacts in federal agencies; states, territories, and state government associations; and nongovernmental organizations. Offices are encouraged to be inclusive in providing opportunities to review DOE NEPA documents.

The NEPA Office updates this *Directory* annually in July and may issue revisions throughout the year as new information becomes available. Please direct questions to [askNEPA@hq.doe.gov](mailto:askNEPA@hq.doe.gov).

**DIRECTORY OF POTENTIAL STAKEHOLDERS  
FOR DOE ACTIONS UNDER NEPA**

**SUMMARY OF CONTENTS**

**FEDERAL AGENCIES ..... 1**

**STATES, TERRITORIES, AND STATE GOVERNMENT ASSOCIATIONS .....16**

**NONGOVERNMENTAL ORGANIZATIONS .....26**

**APPENDIX A: NEPA COMPLIANCE OFFICERS.....37**

**APPENDIX B: DEPARTMENTAL POINTS OF CONTACT FOR AMERICAN INDIAN TRIBAL ISSUES.....37**

**APPENDIX C: PUBLIC READING ROOMS AND LIBRARIES .....41**

**INDEX OF PERSONS LISTED .....46**

## DETAILED CONTENTS

<b>FEDERAL AGENCIES</b> .....	<b>1</b>
CABINET DEPARTMENTS .....	1
Department of Agriculture .....	1
Animal and Plant Health Inspection Service .....	1
Farm Service Agency.....	1
Forest Service.....	1
National Institute of Food and Agriculture .....	1
Natural Resources Conservation Service .....	1
Rural Development .....	1
Department of Commerce .....	2
National Oceanic and Atmospheric Administration .....	2
Department of Defense.....	2
Department of Defense Siting Clearinghouse .....	2
U.S. Army Corps of Engineers .....	2
Department of the Navy .....	3
U.S. Navy .....	3
U.S. Marine Corps .....	3
Department of Health and Human Services.....	3
Centers for Disease Control and Prevention .....	3
Food and Drug Administration .....	3
Department of Homeland Security .....	3
U.S. Coast Guard .....	4
FEMA Region I – CT, ME, MA, NH, RI, VT .....	4
FEMA Region II – NJ, NY, PR, VI.....	4
FEMA Region III – DC, DE, MD, PA, VA, WV .....	4
FEMA Region IV – AL, FL, GA, KY, MS, NC, SC, TN .....	4
FEMA Region V – IL, IN, MI, MN, OH, WI .....	4
FEMA Region VI – AR, LA, NM, OK, TX .....	5
FEMA Region VII – IA, KS, MO, NE .....	5
FEMA Region VIII – CO, MT, ND, SD, UT, WY .....	5
FEMA Region IX – AZ, CA, HI, NV, Pacific Trust Territories .....	5
FEMA Region X – AK, ID, OR, WA.....	5
Department of Housing and Urban Development .....	5
Department of the Interior.....	5
Albuquerque Regional Office – AR, LA, NM, OK, TX .....	6
Anchorage Regional Office – AK .....	6
Atlanta Regional Office – AL, FL, GA, KY, MS, NC, PR, TN, SC, VI .....	6
Boston Regional Office – CT, MA, ME, NH, NJ, NY, RI, VT.....	6
Denver Regional Office – CO, IA, KS, MO, MT, ND, NE, SD, UT, WY .....	6
Philadelphia Regional Office – DC, DE, IL, IN, MD, MI, MN, OH, PA, VA, WI, WV .....	6
Portland Regional Office – ID, OR, WA .....	6
San Francisco Regional Office – AS, AZ, CA, CNMI, GU, HI, NV.....	7
Bureau of Indian Affairs .....	7
Bureau of Land Management .....	7
Bureau of Ocean Energy Management.....	7
Bureau of Safety and Environmental Enforcement .....	7
Bureau of Reclamation .....	7
Fish and Wildlife Service .....	7
National Park Service .....	7
Office of Surface Mining Reclamation and Enforcement .....	7

U.S. Geological Survey .....	8
Department of Justice .....	8
Department of Labor .....	8
Mine Safety and Health Administration .....	8
Department of State.....	8
Department of Transportation .....	8
Federal Aviation Administration .....	8
Federal Highway Administration .....	9
Federal Transit Administration .....	9
Maritime Administration .....	9
National Highway Traffic Safety Administration.....	9
Pipeline and Hazardous Materials Safety Administration .....	9
Surface Transportation Board.....	9
Department of the Treasury.....	9
Department of Veterans Affairs .....	9
OTHER AGENCIES.....	10
Advisory Council on Historic Preservation .....	10
Defense Nuclear Facilities Safety Board .....	10
Denali Commission .....	10
Environmental Protection Agency.....	10
EPA Region 1 – CT, MA, ME, NH, RI, VT .....	10
EPA Region 2 – NJ, NY, PR, VI.....	10
EPA Region 3 – DC, DE, MD, PA, VA, WV .....	10
EPA Region 4 – AL, FL, GA, KY, MS, NC, SC, TN .....	11
EPA Region 5 – IL, IN, MI, MN, OH, WI.....	11
EPA Region 6 – AR, LA, NM, OK, TX.....	11
EPA Region 7 – IA, KS, MO, NE.....	11
EPA Region 8 – CO, MT, ND, SD, UT, WY .....	11
EPA Region 9 – AS, AZ, CA, GU, HI, MP, NV .....	11
EPA Region 10 – AK, ID, OR, WA .....	12
Federal Communications Commission .....	12
Federal Energy Regulatory Commission .....	12
Federal Trade Commission .....	12
First Responder Network Authority (FirstNet) .....	12
General Services Administration .....	12
GSA Region 1 – CT, MA, ME, NH, RI, VT .....	12
GSA Region 2 – NY, NJ, PR, VI .....	13
GSA Region 3 – DE, MD, NJ, PA, VA, WV.....	13
GSA Region 4 – AL, FL, GA, KY, MS, NC, SC, TN .....	13
GSA Region 5 – IL, IN, MI, MN, OH, WI .....	13
GSA Region 6 – MO, IA, KS, NE .....	13
GSA Region 7 – AR, LA, NM, OK, TX .....	13
GSA Region 8 – CO, MT, ND, SD, UT, WY .....	13
GSA Region 9 – AZ, CA, Guam, HI, NV.....	13
GSA Region 10 – AK, ID, OR, WA.....	13
GSA Region 11 – Washington, DC, Metropolitan Area .....	14
International Boundary and Water Commission.....	14
International Trade Commission .....	14
Marine Mammal Commission .....	14

National Aeronautics and Space Administration.....	14
National Capital Planning Commission.....	14
National Science Foundation.....	14
Nuclear Regulatory Commission .....	15
Overseas Private Investment Corporation .....	15
Small Business Administration .....	15
Tennessee Valley Authority.....	15
U.S. Agency for International Development.....	15
<b>STATES, TERRITORIES, AND STATE GOVERNMENT ASSOCIATIONS .....</b>	<b>16</b>
NEPA POINTS OF CONTACT FOR STATES AND TERRITORIES .....	16
NEPA POINTS OF CONTACT FOR STATE GOVERNMENT ASSOCIATIONS .....	24
Delaware River Basin Commission.....	24
Environmental Council of the States .....	24
National Association of Attorneys General.....	24
National Association of State Energy Officials.....	24
National Association of Tribal Historic Preservation Officers.....	24
National Conference of State Historic Preservation Officers.....	24
National Governors Association .....	24
Southern States Energy Board .....	25
State and Tribal Government Working Group (STGWG) .....	25
Susquehanna River Basin Commission .....	25
Western Governors' Association .....	25
Western Interstate Energy Board .....	25
<b>NONGOVERNMENTAL ORGANIZATIONS .....</b>	<b>26</b>
AFL-CIO .....	26
Alliance for Nuclear Accountability .....	26
Alliance to Save Energy .....	26
American Association of Blacks in Energy .....	26
American Bird Conservancy.....	26
American Boiler Manufacturers Association.....	26
American Coal Ash Association .....	26
American Fuel & Petrochemical Manufacturers .....	27
American Lung Association.....	27
American Petroleum Institute .....	27
American Public Power Association .....	27
American Recreation Coalition.....	27
American Rivers.....	27
Blue Ridge Environmental Defense League, Inc. ....	27
Canadian Electricity Association.....	28
Carolina Peace Resource Center .....	28
Center for Biological Diversity .....	28
Citizens for Alternatives to Radioactive Dumping (CARD).....	28
Citizens for Nuclear Technology Awareness.....	28



Clean Water Action.....	28
Committee to Bridge the Gap .....	28
Concerned Citizens for Nuclear Safety .....	29
Conservation Northwest .....	29
Ducks Unlimited, Inc.....	29
Earthjustice.....	29
Economists for Peace and Security .....	29
Edison Electric Institute .....	29
Electric Power Research Institute.....	29
Energy Communities Alliance .....	29
Environmental Defense Fund .....	30
Environmental Defense Institute.....	30
Federation of American Scientists.....	30
Friends of the Earth .....	30
Gas Technology Institute .....	30
Government Accountability Project .....	30
Greenaction for Health and Environmental Justice.....	30
Hanford Challenge .....	30
Healthy Environment Alliance of Utah (HEAL Utah).....	31
Heart of America Northwest .....	31
Indigenous Environmental Network.....	31
Institute for Energy and Environmental Research.....	31
Institute for Energy Research .....	31
Institute for Science and International Security .....	31
League of Women Voters .....	31
Los Alamos Study Group.....	31
National Audubon Society .....	32
National Coal Council .....	32
National Community Action Foundation.....	32
National Congress of American Indians.....	32
National Mining Association.....	32
National Parks Conservation Association .....	32
National Petroleum Council .....	32
National Rural Electric Cooperative Association .....	32
National Trust for Historic Preservation .....	33
National Wildlife Federation .....	33
Natural Resources Defense Council (NRDC) .....	33
The Nature Conservancy .....	33
New England Wild Flower Society, Inc. ....	33
Nuclear Energy Institute.....	33
Nuclear Information and Resource Service .....	33
Nuclear Watch of New Mexico.....	34

Nuclear Watch South.....	34
Oak Ridge Environmental Peace Alliance.....	34
The Partnership Project.....	34
Peace Action.....	34
Physicians for Social Responsibility.....	34
Prairie Rivers Network.....	35
Renewable Fuels Association.....	35
Savannah River Site Watch.....	35
Sierra Club.....	35
Snake River Alliance.....	35
Southwest Research and Information Center.....	35
Tennessee Wildlife Federation.....	35
Tri-Valley Communities Against a Radioactive Environment (Tri-Valley CAREs).....	36
Trout Unlimited.....	36
Union of Concerned Scientists.....	36
Utilities Technology Council.....	36
Western Resource Advocates.....	36
The Wilderness Society.....	36
<b>APPENDIX A: NEPA COMPLIANCE OFFICERS.....</b>	<b>37</b>
<b>APPENDIX B: DEPARTMENTAL POINTS OF CONTACT FOR AMERICAN INDIAN TRIBAL ISSUES.....</b>	<b>37</b>
<b>APPENDIX C: PUBLIC READING ROOMS AND LIBRARIES.....</b>	<b>41</b>
<b>INDEX OF PERSONS LISTED.....</b>	<b>46</b>

## FEDERAL AGENCIES

### CABINET DEPARTMENTS

#### Department of Agriculture

[www.usda.gov](http://www.usda.gov)

##### **Animal and Plant Health Inspection Service**

[www.aphis.usda.gov](http://www.aphis.usda.gov)

APHIS is interested in NEPA documents relating to animal, plant, and human health, biotechnology, invasive species, and bioterrorism.

Ms. Eileen Sutker, Ph.D, J.D.  
USDA/Animal and Plant Health Inspection Service  
Unit 149, Room 3C-03.1  
4700 River Road  
Riverdale, MD 20737-1238

301-851-3043  
[eileen.sutker@aphis.usda.gov](mailto:eileen.sutker@aphis.usda.gov)

##### **Farm Service Agency**

[www.fsa.usda.gov](http://www.fsa.usda.gov)

Mrs. Nell Fuller  
USDA/Farm Service Agency  
Mail Stop 0501, Room 4719  
1400 Independence Avenue, SW  
Washington, DC 20250-0513

202-720-6303  
[nell.fuller@wdc.usda.gov](mailto:nell.fuller@wdc.usda.gov)

##### **Forest Service**

[www.fs.fed.us/emc/nepa](http://www.fs.fed.us/emc/nepa)

NEPA documents relating to a specific National Forest or Grassland should be sent to the local Forest Service office ("Find a Forest or Grassland" at [www.fs.fed.us](http://www.fs.fed.us)). A review request should state the relationship to Forest Service interests. Electronic notification is preferred.

Mr. Jim Smalls  
Ecosystem Management Coordination  
USDA/U.S. Forest Service  
Mail Stop 1104  
1400 Independence Avenue, SW  
Washington, DC 20250

202-205-1475  
[jsmalls@fs.fed.us](mailto:jsmalls@fs.fed.us)

##### **National Institute of Food and Agriculture**

[www.nifa.usda.gov](http://www.nifa.usda.gov)

Dr. Luis Tupas  
Deputy Director  
Institute of Bioenergy, Climate, and Environment  
USDA/National Institute of Food and Agriculture  
Mail Stop 2210  
1400 Independence Avenue, SW  
Washington, DC 20250-2210

202-401-4926  
[ltupas@nifa.usda.gov](mailto:ltupas@nifa.usda.gov)

##### **Natural Resources Conservation Service**

[www.nrcs.usda.gov](http://www.nrcs.usda.gov)

NRCS is interested in NEPA documents relating to actions that may affect NRCS conservation easements, prime and unique farmland, and soil quality.

Ms. Andrée DuVarney  
National Environmental Coordinator  
USDA/Natural Resources Conservation Service  
Room 6158-S; PO Box 2890  
Washington, DC 20013-2890

202-384-7408  
[andree.duvarney@wdc.usda.gov](mailto:andree.duvarney@wdc.usda.gov)

##### **Rural Development**

<http://www.rd.usda.gov/about-rd/agencies>

Rural Development is interested in NEPA documents relating to energy transmission, nuclear energy, energy efficiency, and renewables.

Ms. Kellie Kubena  
USDA/Rural Utilities Service  
Room 2242, Mail Stop 1571  
1400 Independence Avenue, SW  
Washington, DC 20250-1571

202-720-1649  
[kellie.kubena@wdc.usda.gov](mailto:kellie.kubena@wdc.usda.gov)

and

Ms. Peggy Wade  
USDA/Rural Business Service/Rural Housing Service  
Room 6900, Stop 0761  
1400 Independence Avenue, SW  
Washington, DC 20250

202-720-9653  
[peggy.wade@wdc.usda.gov](mailto:peggy.wade@wdc.usda.gov)

## Federal Agencies

### Department of Commerce

[www.doc.gov](http://www.doc.gov)

#### National Oceanic and Atmospheric Administration

[www.nepa.noaa.gov/](http://www.nepa.noaa.gov/)

NOAA is interested in NEPA documents relating to coastal regions and ocean waters.

Send a notice of an EIS and EA for NOAA's consideration for review to [noaa.nepa@noaa.gov](mailto:noaa.nepa@noaa.gov).

Mr. Jeffrey S. Dillen  
Deputy General Counsel  
Department of Commerce, NOAA  
SSMC3, Room 15723 (PPI)  
1315 East-West Highway  
Silver Spring, MD 20910

202-482-4080  
[jeff.dillen@noaa.gov](mailto:jeff.dillen@noaa.gov)

### Department of Defense

#### Department of Defense Siting Clearinghouse

[www.acq.osd.mil/dodsc](http://www.acq.osd.mil/dodsc)

The Clearinghouse provides comprehensive, expedited evaluation of the potential impacts on military missions of energy development and other projects proposed within military training routes or special use airspace, whether on private, state, or federal property. The Clearinghouse encourages early informal consultation when the proposed location and nature of the project are established.

Department of Defense Siting Clearinghouse  
Office of the Deputy Under Secretary of Defense  
Installations and Environment  
3400 Defense Pentagon, Room 5C646  
Washington, DC 20301-3400

[osd.dod-siting-clearinghouse@mail.mil](mailto:osd.dod-siting-clearinghouse@mail.mil)

### Department of the Air Force

[www.af.mil](http://www.af.mil)

The Air Force wishes to receive NEPA documents only for proposals that may affect Air Force airspace, ranges, bases, or related operations. The Air Force prefers to be notified as early as possible, preferably before a notice of intent is issued, especially if it is a potential cooperating agency.

Mr. Jack Bush  
Air Force Civil Engineer, Strategic Plans and  
Programs Division  
DCS/Logistics, Installations, and Mission Support  
Department of the Air Force  
1260 Air Force Pentagon  
Washington, DC 20330-1260

703-614-0237  
[jack.c.bush.civ@mail.mil](mailto:jack.c.bush.civ@mail.mil)

### Department of the Army

[www.aec.army.mil/Services/Support/NEPA/Documents.aspx](http://www.aec.army.mil/Services/Support/NEPA/Documents.aspx)

Ms. Lisa Smith  
NEPA Program Manager, Office of the Assistant Chief  
of Staff for Installation Management  
Department of the Army (ATTN: DAIM-ISE)  
600 Army Pentagon 5A120A-1 (Door 5B112A)  
Washington, DC 20310-0600

571-256-9716  
[lisa.j.smith.civ@mail.mil](mailto:lisa.j.smith.civ@mail.mil)

### U.S. Army Corps of Engineers

[www.usace.army.mil](http://www.usace.army.mil)

The Corps is interested in NEPA documents for proposals that may affect navigation or alter the waters of the United States (including wetlands), and for projects near Corps facilities. The Corps prefers to be notified early, preferably before a notice of intent is issued, especially if it is a potential cooperating agency. Initial contact should be addressed to the local Corps district office, listed at <http://www.usace.army.mil/Locations.aspx>.

Mr. Theodore A. (Tab) Brown  
Chief, Policy and Planning Division  
U.S. Army Corps of Engineers  
441 G Street, NW  
Washington, DC 20314-1000

(no phone number provided)  
[hqplanning@usace.army.mil](mailto:hqplanning@usace.army.mil)

**Department of the Navy**

[http://www.navfac.navy.mil/products\\_and\\_services/ev/products\\_and\\_services/environmental-planning/at\\_sea\\_compliance.html](http://www.navfac.navy.mil/products_and_services/ev/products_and_services/environmental-planning/at_sea_compliance.html)

The Department of the Navy is interested in NEPA documents for proposed actions near U.S. Navy Bases, Marine Corps Bases, and testing and training areas. In addition, the Department is interested in NEPA documents addressing Outer Continental Shelf oil and gas exploration and renewable energy development.

Mr. J. Dan Cecchini  
Director

Environmental Planning and Terrestrial Resources  
Office of the Deputy Assistant Secretary of the Navy  
1000 Navy Pentagon, Room 4A674  
Washington, DC 20350-1000

703-614-1173  
[joseph.cecchini@navy.mil](mailto:joseph.cecchini@navy.mil)

**U.S. Navy**

Ms. Kelly Knight  
Head, Operational Environmental Readiness  
and Planning

Chief of Naval Operations (N45)  
2000 Navy Pentagon, Room 2D253  
Washington, DC 22202-3736  
703-695-5226

[kelly.knight@navy.mil](mailto:kelly.knight@navy.mil)

**U.S. Marine Corps**

Dr. Sue Goodfellow  
Head, Planning and Conservation Section  
Headquarters, U.S. Marine Corps (GF/MCI-COM)  
3000 Marine Corps Pentagon, Room 2D153A  
Washington, DC 20350-3000

571-256-2781  
[sue.goodfellow@usmc.mil](mailto:sue.goodfellow@usmc.mil)

and

Mr. Ronald E. Lamb, CEP  
NEPA Specialist  
Headquarters, U.S. Marine Corps (GF/MCI-COM)  
3000 Marine Corps Pentagon, Room 2D153A  
Washington, DC 20350-3000

571-256-2784  
[ronald.e.lamb@usmc.mil](mailto:ronald.e.lamb@usmc.mil)

**Department of Health and Human Services**

[www.hhs.gov](http://www.hhs.gov)

HHS is interested in NEPA documents relating to health impacts, environmental justice, stormwater control, and air emission sources.

Mr. Everett Bole, CHMM  
Chief Environmental Officer  
Env. Health and Safety Services Prog. Support Center  
U.S. Department of Health and Human Services  
200 Independence Avenue, SW RM 638G.62  
Washington, DC 20201

202-260-6127  
[everett.bole@foh.hhs.gov](mailto:everett.bole@foh.hhs.gov)

**Centers for Disease Control and Prevention**

[www.cdc.gov](http://www.cdc.gov)

Dr. Sharunda Buchanan  
Director, Division of Emergency and Environmental  
Health Services

Centers for Disease Control and Prevention  
National Center for Environmental Health  
Chamblee Bldg 106, Room 6007 (MS F60)  
Chamblee, GA 30341

770-488-7362  
[sdb4@cdc.gov](mailto:sdb4@cdc.gov)

**Food and Drug Administration**

[www.fda.gov](http://www.fda.gov)

Dr. Raanan (Ron) A. Bloom  
Senior Environmental Officer  
Food and Drug Administration  
Center for Drug Evaluation and Research  
10903 New Hampshire Avenue  
Silver Spring, MD 20993-0002

301-796-2185  
[raanan.bloom@fda.hhs.gov](mailto:raanan.bloom@fda.hhs.gov)

**Department of Homeland Security**

[www.dhs.gov](http://www.dhs.gov)

Dr. Teresa Pohlman  
Director of Sustainability and Environmental  
Programs  
Department of Homeland Security  
650 Massachusetts Avenue, NW  
Washington, DC 20528

202-821-9380  
[teresa.pohlman@hq.dhs.gov](mailto:teresa.pohlman@hq.dhs.gov)

and

## Federal Agencies

Ms. Jennifer Hass  
Environmental Planning and Historic Preservation  
Program Manager  
Department of Homeland Security  
650 Massachusetts Avenue, NW  
Washington, DC 20528

202-834-4346  
[jennifer.hass@hq.dhs.gov](mailto:jennifer.hass@hq.dhs.gov)

### **U.S. Coast Guard** [www.uscg.mil](http://www.uscg.mil)

The Coast Guard is interested in NEPA documents for proposals that could affect Coast Guard facilities and missions: marine environmental protection, marine law enforcement, national defense, maritime security, and search and rescue.

Ms. Kebby Kelley  
Environmental Planning Team Lead  
Attn: Office of Environmental Management (CG-47)  
United States Coast Guard Headquarters, Stop 7714  
2703 Martin Luther King Jr. Ave., SE  
Washington, DC 20593-7714

202-475-5690  
[keby.kelley@uscg.mil](mailto:keby.kelley@uscg.mil)

### **FEMA Region I – CT, ME, MA, NH, RI, VT** [www.fema.gov/region-i-ct-me-ma-nh-ri-vt](http://www.fema.gov/region-i-ct-me-ma-nh-ri-vt)

FEMA Region I is interested in NEPA documents relating to floodplain issues.

Mr. David Robbins  
Regional Environmental Officer  
DHS/FEMA Region I Mitigation Division  
99 High Street, 6<sup>th</sup> Floor  
Boston, MA 02110-2310

617-832-4791  
[david.robbins@fema.dhs.gov](mailto:david.robbins@fema.dhs.gov)

### **FEMA Region II – NJ, NY, PR, VI** [www.fema.gov/region-ii-nj-ny-pr-vi-0](http://www.fema.gov/region-ii-nj-ny-pr-vi-0)

Ms. Megan Jadrosich  
Regional Environmental Officer  
DHS/FEMA Region II  
Mitigation Division  
26 Federal Plaza, 13<sup>th</sup> Floor  
New York, NY 10278-0002

212-680-3635  
[megan.jadrosich@fema.dhs.gov](mailto:megan.jadrosich@fema.dhs.gov)

### **FEMA Region III – DC, DE, MD, PA, VA, WV** [www.fema.gov/region-iii-dc-de-md-pa-va-wv](http://www.fema.gov/region-iii-dc-de-md-pa-va-wv)

Ms. Catherine McManus  
Regional Environmental Officer  
DHS/FEMA Region III  
615 Chestnut Street  
One Independence Mall, 6<sup>th</sup> Floor  
Philadelphia, PA 19106-4404

215-931-5510  
[kate.mcmanus@fema.dhs.gov](mailto:kate.mcmanus@fema.dhs.gov)

### **FEMA Region IV – AL, FL, GA, KY, MS, NC, SC, TN** [www.fema.gov/region-iv-al-fl-ga-ky-ms-nc-sc-tn](http://www.fema.gov/region-iv-al-fl-ga-ky-ms-nc-sc-tn)

FEMA Region IV requests that correspondence concerning floodplain management and NEPA issues, DOE facility operations and incidents affecting surrounding communities, and emergency/disaster planning, exercises, preparedness, mitigation, response, and recovery be sent to:

ATTN: NEPA/EO11988 Reviewer  
DHS/FEMA Region IV – Hollins Building  
3003 Chamblee Tucker Road  
Atlanta, GA 30341-4112

[FEMA-R4EHP@fema.dhs.gov](mailto:FEMA-R4EHP@fema.dhs.gov)

Alternate contact:

Dr. Stephanie Madson  
Regional Environmental Officer  
DHS/FEMA Region IV – Hollins Building  
3003 Chamblee Tucker Road  
Atlanta, GA 30341-4112

770-220-5387  
[stephanie.madson@fema.dhs.gov](mailto:stephanie.madson@fema.dhs.gov)

### **FEMA Region V – IL, IN, MI, MN, OH, WI** [www.fema.gov/region-v-il-mi-mn-oh-wi](http://www.fema.gov/region-v-il-mi-mn-oh-wi)

FEMA Region V is interested in NEPA documents relating to floodplain issues.

Mr. Nicholas Mueller  
Regional Environmental Officer  
DHS/FEMA Region V  
536 South Clark Street, 6<sup>th</sup> Floor  
Chicago, IL 60605

312-408-5438  
[nicholas.mueller@fema.dhs.gov](mailto:nicholas.mueller@fema.dhs.gov)

**FEMA Region VI – AR, LA, NM, OK, TX**

[www.fema.gov/region-vi-arkansas-louisiana-new-mexico-oklahoma-texas](http://www.fema.gov/region-vi-arkansas-louisiana-new-mexico-oklahoma-texas)

Mr. Kevin Jaynes  
Regional Environmental Officer  
DHS/FEMA Region VI  
800 North Loop 288  
Denton, TX 76209-3698

940-383-7224  
[kevin.jaynes@fema.dhs.gov](mailto:kevin.jaynes@fema.dhs.gov)

**FEMA Region VII – IA, KS, MO, NE**

[www.fema.gov/region-vii-ia-ks-mo-ne-0](http://www.fema.gov/region-vii-ia-ks-mo-ne-0)

Mr. Ken Sessa  
Regional Environmental Officer  
DHS/FEMA Region VII  
9221 Ward Parkway, Suite 300  
Kansas City, MO 64114

816-283-7960  
[kenneth.sessa@fema.dhs.gov](mailto:kenneth.sessa@fema.dhs.gov)

**FEMA Region VIII – CO, MT, ND, SD, UT, WY**

[www.fema.gov/region-viii-co-mt-nd-sd-ut-wy](http://www.fema.gov/region-viii-co-mt-nd-sd-ut-wy)

Mr. Steve Hardegen  
Regional Environmental Officer  
DHS/FEMA Region VIII  
PO Box 25267  
Denver, CO 80225-0267

303-235-4714  
[steven.hardegen@fema.dhs.gov](mailto:steven.hardegen@fema.dhs.gov)

**FEMA Region IX – AZ, CA, HI, NV,  
Pacific Trust Territories**

[www.fema.gov/fema-region-ix-arizona-california-hawaii-nevada-pacific-islands](http://www.fema.gov/fema-region-ix-arizona-california-hawaii-nevada-pacific-islands)

FEMA Region IX is interested in NEPA documents relating to floodplain issues.

Mr. Alessandro Amaglio  
Regional Environmental Officer  
DHS/FEMA Region IX  
1111 Broadway, Suite 1200  
Oakland, CA 94607-4502

510-627-7284  
[alessandro.amaglio@fema.dhs.gov](mailto:alessandro.amaglio@fema.dhs.gov) or [fema-rix-ehp-documents@fema.dhs.gov](mailto:fema-rix-ehp-documents@fema.dhs.gov)

**FEMA Region X – AK, ID, OR, WA**

[www.fema.gov/region-x-ak-id-or-wa](http://www.fema.gov/region-x-ak-id-or-wa)

Mr. Mark Eberlein  
Regional Environmental Officer  
DHS/FEMA Region X  
130 228<sup>th</sup> Street, SW  
Bothell, WA 98021-9796

425-487-4735  
[mark.eberlein@fema.dhs.gov](mailto:mark.eberlein@fema.dhs.gov)

**Department of Housing and Urban Development**

[www.hud.gov/offices/cpd/environment/index.cfm](http://www.hud.gov/offices/cpd/environment/index.cfm)

The Office of Environment and Energy is interested only in EISs involving national policy issues. An EIS for a site-specific project should be sent to the local HUD office, listed at [portal.hud.gov/hudportal/HUD?src=/localoffices](http://portal.hud.gov/hudportal/HUD?src=/localoffices).

Ms. Danielle Schopp, JD, MPA  
Director, Office of Environment and Energy  
Department of Housing and Urban Development  
451 Seventh Street, SW, Room 7250  
Washington, DC 20410-7000

202-402-4442  
[danielle.l.schopp@hud.gov](mailto:danielle.l.schopp@hud.gov)

**Department of the Interior**

[www.doi.gov](http://www.doi.gov)

DOI requests that a review request for a draft or final EIS be sent to the Headquarters Office of Environmental Policy and Compliance, which will provide it to DOI bureaus and regional offices. For detailed instructions, see <https://www.doi.gov/oepec/HQ-teams/nrm-team>, at the link for “Environmental Document Submission Requirements for Departmental Review.”

The contact for DOE issues is:

Ms. Lisa Treichel  
Office of Environmental Policy and Compliance  
Department of the Interior  
1849 C Street, NW (MS 2462-MIB)  
Washington, DC 20240

202-208-7116  
[lisa.treichel@ios.doi.gov](mailto:lisa.treichel@ios.doi.gov)

DOI encourages direct consultation with its Regional Environmental Officers and Bureau contacts on other environmental matters, including early coordination and scoping, EAs and FONSI, preliminary or working draft EISs, and matters of a regional nature. For further information, see <https://www.doi.gov/oepec/regional-offices>.

*Federal Agencies*

**Albuquerque Regional Office – AR, LA, NM, OK, TX**

<https://www.doi.gov/oepec/regional-offices/albuquerque>

Mr. Stephen R. Spencer, Ph.D.  
Regional Environmental Officer  
Office of Environmental Policy and Compliance  
Department of the Interior  
1001 Indian School Road, NW, Suite 348  
Albuquerque, NM 87104-2303

505-563-3572

[stephen\\_spencer@ios.doi.gov](mailto:stephen_spencer@ios.doi.gov)

and

Mr. John Nelson  
Office of Environmental Policy and Compliance  
Department of the Interior  
1001 Indian School Road, NW, Suite 348  
Albuquerque, NM 87104-2303

505-563-3572

[john.nelson@ios.doi.gov](mailto:john.nelson@ios.doi.gov)

**Anchorage Regional Office – AK**

<https://www.doi.gov/oepec/regional-offices/anchorage>

Dr. Philip Johnson  
Regional Environmental Officer  
Office of Environmental Policy and Compliance  
Department of the Interior  
1689 C Street, Room 119  
Anchorage, AK 99501-5126

907-271-5011

[philip\\_johnson@ios.doi.gov](mailto:philip_johnson@ios.doi.gov)

**Atlanta Regional Office – AL, FL, GA, KY, MS, NC, PR, TN, SC, VI**

<https://www.doi.gov/oepec/regional-offices/atlanta>

Ms. Joyce Stanley  
Regional Environmental Protection Specialist  
Office of Environmental Policy and Compliance  
Department of the Interior  
75 Spring Street, SW, Suite 1144  
Atlanta, GA 30303

404-331-4524

[joyce\\_stanley@ios.doi.gov](mailto:joyce_stanley@ios.doi.gov)

**Boston Regional Office – CT, MA, ME, NH, NJ, NY, RI, VT**

<https://www.doi.gov/oepec/regional-offices/boston>

Mr. Andrew L. Raddant  
Regional Environmental Officer  
Office of Environmental Policy and Compliance  
Department of the Interior  
15 State Street, Suite 400  
Boston, MA 02109

617-223-8565

[andrew\\_raddant@ios.doi.gov](mailto:andrew_raddant@ios.doi.gov)

**Denver Regional Office – CO, IA, KS, MO, MT, ND, NE, SD, UT, WY**

<https://www.doi.gov/oepec/regional-offices/denver>

Mr. Robert F. Stewart  
Regional Environmental Officer  
Office of Environmental Policy and Compliance  
Department of the Interior  
PO Box 25007 (D-108)  
Denver, CO 80225-0007

303-445-2500

[robert\\_f\\_stewart@ios.doi.gov](mailto:robert_f_stewart@ios.doi.gov)

**Philadelphia Regional Office – DC, DE, IL, IN, MD, MI, MN, OH, PA, VA, WI, WV**

<https://www.doi.gov/oepec/regional-offices/philadelphia>

Mr. Lindy Nelson  
Regional Environmental Officer  
Office of Environmental Policy and Compliance  
Department of the Interior  
200 Chestnut Street  
Custom House, Room 244  
Philadelphia, PA 19106-2904

215-597-5378

[lindy\\_nelson@ios.doi.gov](mailto:lindy_nelson@ios.doi.gov)

**Portland Regional Office – ID, OR, WA**

<https://www.doi.gov/oepec/regional-offices/portland>

Ms. Allison O'Brien  
Regional Environmental Officer  
Office of Environmental Policy and Compliance  
Department of the Interior  
620 Southwest Main Street, Suite 201  
Portland, OR 97205

503-326-2489

[allison\\_o'brien@ios.doi.gov](mailto:allison_o'brien@ios.doi.gov)



**San Francisco Regional Office – AS, AZ, CA, CNMI, GU, HI, NV**

<https://www.doi.gov/oepc/regional-offices/san-francisco>

Ms. Patricia Sanderson Port  
Regional Environmental Officer  
Office of Environmental Policy and Compliance  
Department of the Interior  
333 Bush Street  
San Francisco, CA 94104

415-296-3350  
[patricia\\_port@ios.doi.gov](mailto:patricia_port@ios.doi.gov)

**Bureau of Indian Affairs**

[www.bia.gov](http://www.bia.gov)

Mr. Terry McClung  
NEPA Coordinator, Division of Environmental  
and Cultural Resources Management  
Bureau of Indian Affairs  
1849 C Street, NW, MS 4637  
Washington, DC 20240

202-208-5474  
[terry.mcclung@bia.gov](mailto:terry.mcclung@bia.gov)

**Bureau of Land Management**

[www.blm.gov](http://www.blm.gov)

Ms. Kerry Rodgers  
Bureau of Land Management  
Division of Decision Support, Planning, and NEPA  
20 M Street, SE  
Washington, DC 20003

202-912-7158  
[kerodgers@blm.gov](mailto:kerodgers@blm.gov)

**Bureau of Ocean Energy Management**

[www.boem.gov](http://www.boem.gov)

Dr. Jill Lewandowski  
Chief, Division of Environmental Assessment  
Office of Environmental Programs (HM 3107)  
Bureau of Ocean Energy Management  
381 Elden Street  
Herndon, VA 20170

703-787-1703  
[jill.lewandowski@boem.gov](mailto:jill.lewandowski@boem.gov)

**Bureau of Safety and Environmental Enforcement**

[www.bsee.gov](http://www.bsee.gov)

Mr. Glenn Degnitz  
Deputy Chief, Environmental Compliance Division  
Bureau of Safety and Environmental Enforcement 381  
45600 Woodland Road  
Sterling, VA 20166

703-787-1850  
[glenn.degnitz@bsee.gov](mailto:glenn.degnitz@bsee.gov)

**Bureau of Reclamation**

[www.usbr.gov](http://www.usbr.gov)

Ms. Cathy Cunningham  
Environmental Specialist  
Bureau of Reclamation  
Denver Federal Center  
PO Box 25007, Mail Stop 84-53000  
Denver, CO 80225

303-445-2875  
[ccunningham@usbr.gov](mailto:ccunningham@usbr.gov)

**Fish and Wildlife Service**

[www.fws.gov](http://www.fws.gov)

To identify a NEPA contact for a specific matter, select a location at <https://www.fws.gov/offices/#List>.

**National Park Service**

[www.nature.nps.gov/environmentalquality](http://www.nature.nps.gov/environmentalquality)

Mr. Patrick Walsh  
Chief, Environmental Planning and Compliance  
National Park Service, WASO-EQD  
PO Box 25287  
Denver, CO 80225

303-987-6620  
[patrick\\_walsh@nps.gov](mailto:patrick_walsh@nps.gov)

**Office of Surface Mining Reclamation and Enforcement**

[www.osmre.gov](http://www.osmre.gov)

Ms. Robin Ferguson  
NEPA Analyst  
Office of Surface Mining Reclamation and  
Enforcement  
1951 Constitution Avenue, NW  
SIB MS 214  
Washington, DC 20240

202-208-2802  
[rferguson@osmre.gov](mailto:rferguson@osmre.gov)

## Federal Agencies

### U.S. Geological Survey

[www.usgs.gov](http://www.usgs.gov)

Ms. Esther Eng  
Chief, Environmental Management Branch  
U.S. Geological Survey  
12201 Sunrise Valley Drive, MS-207  
Reston, VA 20192

703-648-7550  
[eeng@usgs.gov](mailto:eeng@usgs.gov)

and

Mr. J. Michael Norris  
Senior Science Adviser  
Office of Water Program Coordination  
US Geological Survey  
331 Commerce Way  
Pembroke, NH 03275

603-226-7847  
[mnorris@usgs.gov](mailto:mnorris@usgs.gov)

### Department of Justice

[www.usdoj.gov](http://www.usdoj.gov)

To identify a NEPA contact for a specific matter,  
call 202-514-2701.

Environment and Natural Resources Division  
U.S. Department of Justice  
950 Pennsylvania Avenue, NW  
Washington, DC 20530-0001

### Department of Labor

[www.dol.gov](http://www.dol.gov)

#### Mine Safety and Health Administration

[www.msha.gov](http://www.msha.gov)

The Administration requests NEPA documents relating to mining operations and activities, dam safety, disposition or recovery of abandoned mine sites, and any other proposed activities involving active or abandoned mines.

Ms. Sheila McConnell  
Director, Office of Standards, Regulations, and  
Variances

Mine Safety and Health Administration  
Department of Labor  
1100 Wilson Boulevard, Room 2309  
Arlington, VA 22209

202-693-9440  
[mcconnell.sheila.a@dol.gov](mailto:mcconnell.sheila.a@dol.gov)

### Department of State

[www.state.gov](http://www.state.gov)

The Department of State is interested in border issues and Presidential permits.

Ms. Mary Hassell, CEP  
Bureau of Oceans and International Environment  
and Scientific Affairs  
United States Department of State  
2201 C Street, NW, Suite 2727  
Washington, DC 20520

202-736-7428  
[hassellmd@state.gov](mailto:hassellmd@state.gov)

### Department of Transportation

[www.dot.gov](http://www.dot.gov)

The Office of Transportation Policy is interested in NEPA documents relating to radioactive waste transportation, advanced technology vehicles and vehicle components, hydrogen infrastructure, fuel economy, transportation fuels, liquefied natural gas, pipelines, and measures to reduce the climate change impacts of transportation.

Ms. Colleen Vaughn  
Office of Policy Development, Strategic Planning  
and Performance (P-32)  
Office of the Secretary of Transportation  
Department of Transportation  
1200 New Jersey Avenue, SE  
Washington, DC 20590-0001

202-366-7098  
[colleen.vaughn@dot.gov](mailto:colleen.vaughn@dot.gov)

### Federal Aviation Administration

[www.faa.gov](http://www.faa.gov)

FAA is interested in NEPA documents for proposals that may affect airspace, air traffic, air traffic communication, and special use airspace restrictions (e.g., over DOE sites). FAA is also interested in biojet fuel research and sources of noise or air emissions that might contribute to cumulative effects associated with airport/aircraft sources.

Ms. Rhonda Solomon  
Environmental Policy and Operations Division  
Federal Aviation Administration (AEE-400)  
Department of Transportation  
800 Independence Avenue, SW, Room 900W  
Washington, DC 20591

202-267-3021  
[rhonda.solomon@faa.gov](mailto:rhonda.solomon@faa.gov)

**Federal Highway Administration**

[www.fhwa.dot.gov](http://www.fhwa.dot.gov)

NEPA documents involving surface transportation issues of national scope should be coordinated with the Office of Project Development and Environmental Review. NEPA documents of regional, state, or local scope should be coordinated with the FHWA state-level Division Office; see

[www.fhwa.dot.gov/keyfield/famc.htm](http://www.fhwa.dot.gov/keyfield/famc.htm).

Mr. Harold Peaks

Team Leader, Project Development Team  
Office of Project Development  
and Environmental Review  
Federal Highway Administration  
Department of Transportation  
1200 New Jersey Avenue, SE  
Washington, DC 20590-0001

202-366-1598

[harold.peaks@dot.gov](mailto:harold.peaks@dot.gov)

**Federal Transit Administration**

[www.fta.dot.gov](http://www.fta.dot.gov)

FTA is interested in NEPA documents relating to global climate change.

Ms. Maya Sarna

Office of Human and Natural Environment  
Federal Transit Administration (TPE-30)  
Department of Transportation  
1200 New Jersey Avenue, SE  
Washington, DC 20590-0001

202-366-5811

[maya.sarna@dot.gov](mailto:maya.sarna@dot.gov)

**Maritime Administration**

[www.marad.dot.gov](http://www.marad.dot.gov)

Office of the Chief Counsel  
Maritime Administration  
Department of Transportation  
1200 New Jersey Avenue, SE  
Washington, DC 20590-0001

202-366-5320

(no email available)

**National Highway Traffic Safety Administration**

[www.nhtsa.gov](http://www.nhtsa.gov)

Mr. Russell Krupen

Attorney-Advisor, Office of Chief Counsel  
National Highway Traffic Safety Administration  
Department of Transportation  
1200 New Jersey Avenue, SE, W41-113  
Washington, DC 20590-0001

202-366-0738

[russell.krupen@dot.gov](mailto:russell.krupen@dot.gov)

**Pipeline and Hazardous Materials Safety Administration**

[www.phmsa.dot.gov](http://www.phmsa.dot.gov)

Mr. William S Schoonover

Deputy Associate Administrator  
Hazardous Materials Safety (PHH1)  
Pipeline and Hazardous Materials Safety Admin.  
Department of Transportation  
1200 New Jersey Avenue, SE  
Washington, DC 20590-0001

202-366-0656

[phmsa.hmhazmatsafety@dot.gov](mailto:phmsa.hmhazmatsafety@dot.gov)

**Surface Transportation Board**

[www.stb.dot.gov](http://www.stb.dot.gov)

The Surface Transportation Board does not wish to receive NEPA documents (only notifications), but is available as a point of contact on rail transportation.

Ms. Victoria Rutson

Director, Office of Environmental Analysis  
Surface Transportation Board  
Department of Transportation  
395 E Street, SW  
Washington, DC 20423-0001

202-245-0295

[rutsonv@stb.dot.gov](mailto:rutsonv@stb.dot.gov)

**Department of the Treasury**

[www.treas.gov](http://www.treas.gov)

Mr. Glen Mondani

Director, Office of Environment, Health, and Safety  
Department of the Treasury, Annex 6400K  
1500 Pennsylvania Avenue, NW  
Washington, DC 20220

202-622-1712

[glen.mondani@treasury.gov](mailto:glen.mondani@treasury.gov)

**Department of Veterans Affairs**

[www.va.gov](http://www.va.gov)

[www.cfm.va.gov](http://www.cfm.va.gov)

Mr. Thomas Moran

Office of Construction and Facilities Management  
Department of Veterans Affairs  
810 Vermont Avenue, NW, Room 6W510A  
Washington, DC 20001

202-632-5375

[thomas.moran2@va.gov](mailto:thomas.moran2@va.gov)

and

## Federal Agencies

Ms. Michelle DeGrandi  
Department of Veterans Affairs  
Office of General Counsel  
14312 Hayes Street  
Overland Park, KS 66221  
  
913-400-2106  
[michelle.degrandi@va.gov](mailto:michelle.degrandi@va.gov)

### OTHER AGENCIES

#### Advisory Council on Historic Preservation

[www.achp.gov](http://www.achp.gov)

Mr. Reid Nelson  
Director, Office of Federal Agency Programs  
Advisory Council on Historic Preservation  
401 F Street NW, Suite 308  
Washington, DC 20001-2637  
  
202-507-0206  
[rnelson@achp.gov](mailto:rnelson@achp.gov)

#### Defense Nuclear Facilities Safety Board

[www.dnfsb.gov](http://www.dnfsb.gov)

Ms. Lorraine Meehan  
Defense Nuclear Facilities Safety Board  
625 Indiana Avenue, NW, Suite 700  
Washington, DC 20004  
  
202-694-7088  
[lorrainem@dnfsb.gov](mailto:lorrainem@dnfsb.gov)

#### Denali Commission

[www.denali.gov](http://www.denali.gov)

The Denali Commission is interested in NEPA documents relating to fossil energy (fuel storage, power generation, and transmission) and energy efficiency (renewable resources and alternative fuels).

Ms. Tessa Axelson  
Senior Program Manager  
Denali Commission  
510 L Street, Suite 410  
Anchorage, AK 99501  
  
907-271-1624  
[taxelson@denali.gov](mailto:taxelson@denali.gov)

#### Environmental Protection Agency

[www.epa.gov/compliance/nepa/index.html](http://www.epa.gov/compliance/nepa/index.html)

EPA's contact for DOE NEPA matters is:

Ms. Marthea Rountree  
Office of Federal Activities  
Environmental Protection Agency  
Mail Code 2252-A  
1200 Pennsylvania Avenue, NW  
Washington, DC 20460

202-564-7141

[rountree.marthea@epa.gov](mailto:rountree.marthea@epa.gov)

#### EPA Region 1 – CT, MA, ME, NH, RI, VT

[www2.epa.gov/nepa/national-environmental-policy-act-epa-region-1](http://www2.epa.gov/nepa/national-environmental-policy-act-epa-region-1)

Mr. Timothy L. Timmermann  
Associate Director  
Office of Environmental Review, ORA 17-1  
Environmental Protection Agency, Region 1  
5 Post Office Square, Suite 100  
Boston, MA 02109-3912

617-918-1025

[timmermann.timothy@epa.gov](mailto:timmermann.timothy@epa.gov)

#### EPA Region 2 – NJ, NY, PR, VI

[www2.epa.gov/nepa/national-environmental-policy-act-epa-region-2](http://www2.epa.gov/nepa/national-environmental-policy-act-epa-region-2)

Ms. Grace Musumeci  
Chief, Environmental Review Section  
Environmental Protection Agency, Region 2  
290 Broadway, 25<sup>th</sup> Floor  
New York, NY 10007-1866

212-637-3738

[musumeci.grace@epa.gov](mailto:musumeci.grace@epa.gov)

#### EPA Region 3 – DC, DE, MD, PA, VA, WV

[www2.epa.gov/nepa/national-environmental-policy-act-epa-region-3](http://www2.epa.gov/nepa/national-environmental-policy-act-epa-region-3)

Ms. Barbara Rudnick  
NEPA Program Team Leader  
Environmental Protection Agency, Region 3  
1650 Arch Street, 3EA30  
Philadelphia, PA 19103

215-814-3322

[rudnick.barbara@epa.gov](mailto:rudnick.barbara@epa.gov)

**EPA Region 4 – AL, FL, GA, KY, MS, NC, SC, TN**

[www2.epa.gov/nepa/national-environmental-policy-act-epa-region-4](http://www2.epa.gov/nepa/national-environmental-policy-act-epa-region-4)

Mr. Heinz Mueller  
Chief, NEPA Program Office  
Environmental Protection Agency, Region 4  
61 Forsyth Street, SW  
Atlanta, GA 30303

404-562-9611  
[mueller.heinz@epa.gov](mailto:mueller.heinz@epa.gov)

**EPA Region 5 – IL, IN, MI, MN, OH, WI**

[www2.epa.gov/nepa/national-environmental-policy-act-epa-region-5](http://www2.epa.gov/nepa/national-environmental-policy-act-epa-region-5)

Mr. Kenneth Westlake  
Chief, NEPA Implementation Section  
Office of Enforcement and Compliance Assurance  
Environmental Protection Agency, Region 5  
77 West Jackson Boulevard  
Chicago, IL 60604-3590

312-886-2910  
[westlake.kenneth@epa.gov](mailto:westlake.kenneth@epa.gov)

**EPA Region 6 – AR, LA, NM, OK, TX**

[www2.epa.gov/nepa/national-environmental-policy-act-epa-region-6](http://www2.epa.gov/nepa/national-environmental-policy-act-epa-region-6)

Mr. Michael P. Jansky  
Regional Environmental Review Coordinator  
Office of Planning and Coordination  
Environmental Protection Agency, Region 6  
1445 Ross Avenue, Mail Code 6EN-XP  
Dallas, TX 75202-2733

214-665-7451  
[jansky.michael@epamail.epa.gov](mailto:jansky.michael@epamail.epa.gov)

**EPA Region 7 – IA, KS, MO, NE**

[www2.epa.gov/nepa/national-environmental-policy-act-epa-region-7](http://www2.epa.gov/nepa/national-environmental-policy-act-epa-region-7)

Ms. Cecilia Tapia  
Director  
Environmental Sciences and Technology Division  
Environmental Protection Agency, Region 7  
11201 Renner Boulevard  
Lenexa, KS 66219

913-551-7733  
[tapia.cecilia@epa.gov](mailto:tapia.cecilia@epa.gov)

and

Mr. Joshua Tapp  
Deputy Director, Environmental Sciences and  
Technology Division/NEPA Program Manager  
Environmental Protection Agency, Region 7  
11201 Renner Boulevard,  
Lenexa, KS 66219

913-551-7606  
[tapp.joshua@epa.gov](mailto:tapp.joshua@epa.gov)

and

Mr. Larry Shepard  
Senior NEPA Reviewer  
Environmental Protection Agency, Region 7  
11201 Renner Boulevard  
Lenexa, KS 66219

913-551-7441  
[shepard.larry@epa.gov](mailto:shepard.larry@epa.gov)

**EPA Region 8 – CO, MT, ND, SD, UT, WY**

[www.epa.gov/nepa/national-environmental-policy-act-epa-region-8](http://www.epa.gov/nepa/national-environmental-policy-act-epa-region-8)

Mr. Philip Strobel  
Director, NEPA Compliance and Review  
Environmental Protection Agency, Region 8  
1595 Wynkoop Street (8EPR-N)  
Denver, CO 80202-1129

303-312-6704  
[strobel.philip@epa.gov](mailto:strobel.philip@epa.gov)

**EPA Region 9 – AS, AZ, CA, GU, HI, MP, NV**

[www2.epa.gov/nepa/national-environmental-policy-act-epa-region-9](http://www2.epa.gov/nepa/national-environmental-policy-act-epa-region-9)

Mr. Scott Sysum  
Department of Energy Reviewer  
Environmental Review Section  
Environmental Protection Agency, Region 9  
75 Hawthorne Street (ENF-4-2)  
San Francisco, CA 94105

415-972-3742  
[sysum.scott@epa.gov](mailto:sysum.scott@epa.gov)

## Federal Agencies

### **EPA Region 10 – AK, ID, OR, WA**

[www2.epa.gov/nepa/national-environmental-policy-act-epa-region-10](http://www2.epa.gov/nepa/national-environmental-policy-act-epa-region-10)

Ms. Teena Littleton  
Manager, Environment Review and Sediment  
Management Unit, ETPA-202-3  
Office of Ecosystems, Tribal, and Public Affairs  
Environmental Protection Agency, Region 10  
1200 Sixth Avenue, Suite 900  
Seattle, WA 98101-3140

206-553-1601  
[littleton.christine@epa.gov](mailto:littleton.christine@epa.gov)

### **Federal Communications Commission**

[www.fcc.gov](http://www.fcc.gov)

Ms. Aliza Katz  
Office of General Counsel  
Federal Communications Commission  
445 12th Street SW  
Washington, DC 20554

202-418-1720  
[akatz@fcc.gov](mailto:akatz@fcc.gov)

and

Ms. Erica Rosenberg  
Assistant Chief  
Competition and Infrastructure Policy Division  
Wireless Telecommunications Commission  
Federal Communications Commission  
445 12th Street SW  
Washington, DC 20554

202-418-1343  
[erica.rosenberg@fcc.gov](mailto:erica.rosenberg@fcc.gov)

and

Ms. Lee Martin  
Office of General Counsel  
Federal Communications Commission  
445 12th Street SW  
Washington, DC 20554

202-418-1954  
[lee.martin@fcc.gov](mailto:lee.martin@fcc.gov)

### **Federal Energy Regulatory Commission**

[www.ferc.gov](http://www.ferc.gov)

Ms. Ann F. Miles  
Director, Office of Energy Projects  
Federal Energy Regulatory Commission  
888 First Street, NE, Room 6A-01, PJ-1  
Washington, DC 20426

202-502-6769  
[ann.miles@ferc.gov](mailto:ann.miles@ferc.gov)

### **Federal Trade Commission**

[www.ftc.gov](http://www.ftc.gov)

Mr. Joel Marcus-Kurn  
Mail Code H-568  
Federal Trade Commission  
600 Pennsylvania Avenue, NW  
Washington, DC 20580

202-326-3350  
[jmarcuskurn@ftc.gov](mailto:jmarcuskurn@ftc.gov)

### **First Responder Network Authority (FirstNet)**

[www.firstnet.gov](http://www.firstnet.gov)

FirstNet is primarily interested in NEPA documents for proposed telecommunications projects, large linear projects such as transmission lines, and any proposed project that involves radio frequency electromagnetic field emissions.

Ms. Amanda Pereira, AICP  
NEPA Coordinator  
FirstNet  
U.S. Department of Commerce  
12201 Sunrise Valley Drive, MS 243  
Reston, VA 20192

571-665-6141  
[amanda.pereira@firstnet.gov](mailto:amanda.pereira@firstnet.gov)

### **General Services Administration**

[www.gsa.gov](http://www.gsa.gov)

The Environment Division is interested in national policy issues. Documents for site-specific projects should be sent to the appropriate GSA regional office.

Mr. Martin Gusky  
Director, Facility Risk Management  
Office of Facilities Management  
Public Buildings Service  
General Services Administration  
1800 F Street, NW, Room 5100  
Washington, DC 20405

202-527-2149  
[martin.gusky@gsa.gov](mailto:martin.gusky@gsa.gov)

### **GSA Region 1 – CT, MA, ME, NH, RI, VT**

[www.gsa.gov/region1](http://www.gsa.gov/region1)

Mr. David M. Drevinsky  
Civil Engineer and NEPA Advisor  
General Services Administration, Region 1  
Thomas P. O'Neill, Jr. Federal Building  
10 Causeway Street, 11<sup>th</sup> Floor  
Boston, MA 02222-1047

617-565-6596  
[dave.drevinsky@gsa.gov](mailto:dave.drevinsky@gsa.gov)

**GSA Region 2 – NY, NJ, PR, VI**

[www.gsa.gov/region2](http://www.gsa.gov/region2)

Mr. Thomas W. Burke, PE, LEED AP  
NEPA and Sustainability Programs Manager  
Energy and Sustainability Branch  
General Services Administration, Region 2  
One World Trade Center, 55<sup>th</sup> Floor Room 55W09  
New York, NY 10007

212-264-0800  
[thomas.w.burke@gsa.gov](mailto:thomas.w.burke@gsa.gov)

**GSA Region 3 – DE, MD, NJ, PA, VA, WV**

[www.gsa.gov/region3](http://www.gsa.gov/region3)

Ms. Courtenay Hoernemann  
Facilities Management  
General Services Administration, Region 3  
100 S Independence Mall West  
Philadelphia, PA 19106

215-446-4710  
[courtenay.hoernemann@gsa.gov](mailto:courtenay.hoernemann@gsa.gov)

and

Mr. Myles Vaughan  
Facilities Management  
General Services Administration, Region 3  
100 S Independence Mall West  
Philadelphia, PA 19106

215-446-5784  
[myles.vaughan@gsa.gov](mailto:myles.vaughan@gsa.gov)

**GSA Region 4 – AL, FL, GA, KY, MS, NC, SC, TN**

[www.gsa.gov/region4](http://www.gsa.gov/region4)

Mr. Ashish K. Desai  
General Services Administration, Region 4  
Martin Luther King Building  
77 Forsyth Street  
Atlanta, GA 30308

404-331-6984  
404-326-6232  
[ashish.desai@gsa.gov](mailto:ashish.desai@gsa.gov)

**GSA Region 5 – IL, IN, MI, MN, OH, WI**

[www.gsa.gov/region5](http://www.gsa.gov/region5)

Ms. Massiel Lucca-Amador  
Environmental Engineer  
General Services Administration, Region 5  
230 S. Dearborn Street, 3500  
Chicago, IL 60604-1505

312-983-1829  
[massiel.lucca-amador@gsa.gov](mailto:massiel.lucca-amador@gsa.gov)

**GSA Region 6 – MO, IA, KS, NE**

[www.gsa.gov/region6](http://www.gsa.gov/region6)

Mr. Kenny Empson  
Program Analyst  
General Services Administration, Region 6  
6P2CMC  
2300 Main Street  
Kansas City, MO 64108

816-823-1645  
[kenny.empson@gsa.gov](mailto:kenny.empson@gsa.gov)

**GSA Region 7 – AR, LA, NM, OK, TX**

[www.gsa.gov/region7](http://www.gsa.gov/region7)

Ms. Karla R. Carmichael  
General Services Administration, Region 7  
819 Taylor Street, 12A  
Fort Worth, TX 76102-6118

817-822-1372  
[karla.carmichael@gsa.gov](mailto:karla.carmichael@gsa.gov)

**GSA Region 8 – CO, MT, ND, SD, UT, WY**

[www.gsa.gov/region8](http://www.gsa.gov/region8)

Ms. Sharon Malloy  
NEPA Program Specialist  
General Services Administration, Region 8  
One Denver Federal Center  
Building 41  
Denver, CO 80225-0546

303-236-1776  
[sharon.malloy@gsa.gov](mailto:sharon.malloy@gsa.gov)

**GSA Region 9 – AZ, CA, Guam, HI, NV**

[www.gsa.gov/region9](http://www.gsa.gov/region9)

Mr. Osmahn Kadri  
Regional Environmental Quality Adviser /  
NEPA Project Manager  
General Services Administration, Region 9  
50 United Nations Plaza, Room 3355  
San Francisco, CA 94102-4912

415-522-3617  
[osmahn.kadri@gsa.gov](mailto:osmahn.kadri@gsa.gov)

**GSA Region 10 – AK, ID, OR, WA**

[www.gsa.gov/region10](http://www.gsa.gov/region10)

Mr. Robert Bliss  
Regional Environmental Program Manager  
General Services Administration, Region 10  
10PME  
400 15<sup>th</sup> Street, SW  
Auburn, WA 98001-6599

253-931-7929  
[robert.bliss@gsa.gov](mailto:robert.bliss@gsa.gov)



## Federal Agencies

### **GSA Region 11 – Washington, DC, Metropolitan Area**

[www.gsa.gov/region11](http://www.gsa.gov/region11)

Mr. Martin Gusky  
Director, Facility Risk Management Division  
Public Buildings Service  
General Services Administration, Region 11  
1800 F Street, NW  
Washington, DC 20405

202-527-2149

[martin.gusky@gsa.gov](mailto:martin.gusky@gsa.gov)

and

Ms. Stephanie R. Hamlett  
National Environmental Policy Act Lead  
Office of Planning and Design Quality  
U.S. General Services Administration  
National Capital Region  
301 7th Street, SW  
Suite 4004  
Washington, DC 20407

202-401-9764

[stephanie.hamlett@gsa.gov](mailto:stephanie.hamlett@gsa.gov)

### **International Boundary and Water Commission**

[www.ibwc.gov](http://www.ibwc.gov)

The Commission is interested in NEPA documents for projects and environmental impacts within 100 kilometers of the United States–Mexico border.

Mr. Gilbert Anaya  
International Boundary and Water Commission  
United States and Mexico  
U.S. Section, Building C  
4171 North Mesa Street, Suite 100  
El Paso, TX 79902-1441

915-832-4702

[gilbert.anaya@ibwc.gov](mailto:gilbert.anaya@ibwc.gov)

### **International Trade Commission**

[www.usitc.gov](http://www.usitc.gov)

The Commission is interested in NEPA documents relating to DOE's Nuclear Energy, Fossil Energy, and Environmental Management programs, and any proposals involving imports and exports of energy, waste, or energy-related equipment.

Ms. Cynthia Foreso  
International Trade Analyst  
International Trade Commission  
500 E Street, SW, Room 511-J  
Washington, DC 20436

202-205-3348

[cynthia.foreso@usitc.gov](mailto:cynthia.foreso@usitc.gov)

### **Marine Mammal Commission**

[www.mmc.gov](http://www.mmc.gov)

Mr. Michael Gosliner  
General Counsel  
Marine Mammal Commission  
4340 East-West Highway, Suite 700  
Bethesda, MD 20814

301-504-0087

[mgosliner@mmc.gov](mailto:mgosliner@mmc.gov)

### **National Aeronautics and Space Administration**

[www.nasa.gov/agency/nepa](http://www.nasa.gov/agency/nepa)

Ms. Tina Borghild Norwood  
NEPA Manager, EMD  
Office of Strategic Infrastructure, Suite 2U82  
National Aeronautics and Space Administration  
300 E Street, SW  
Washington, DC 20546

202-358-7324

[tnorwood@hq.nasa.gov](mailto:tnorwood@hq.nasa.gov)

### **National Capital Planning Commission**

[www.ncpc.gov](http://www.ncpc.gov)

The Commission is interested in issues involving the Washington, DC, metropolitan area.

Ms. Lucy Kempf  
Director, Urban Design and Plan Review Division  
National Capital Planning Commission  
Suite 500N  
401 Ninth Street, NW  
Washington, DC 20004

202-482-7223

[lucy.kempf@ncpc.gov](mailto:lucy.kempf@ncpc.gov)

### **National Science Foundation**

[www.nsf.gov](http://www.nsf.gov)

Ms. Caroline M. Blanco  
Assistant General Counsel  
National Science Foundation  
4201 Wilson Boulevard, Suite 1265  
Arlington, VA 22230

703-292-4592

[cblanco@nsf.gov](mailto:cblanco@nsf.gov)



**Nuclear Regulatory Commission**

[www.nrc.gov](http://www.nrc.gov)

For NEPA documents relating to existing nuclear power plants and research and test reactors:

Mr. Christopher G. Miller  
Director, Division of License Renewal  
Office of Nuclear Reactor Regulation  
Nuclear Regulatory Commission  
Washington, DC 20555

301-415-1183

[chris.miller@nrc.gov](mailto:chris.miller@nrc.gov)

For NEPA documents pertaining to the West Valley, Savannah River, Hanford, Idaho National Laboratory, Waste Isolation Pilot Plant, Piketon, and Portsmouth sites; and programmatic or generic EISs pertaining to decommissioning of nuclear facilities, fuel cycles facilities, spent fuel reprocessing, radioactive materials, or radioactive waste:

Mr. John Tappert  
Director, Division of Decommissioning, Uranium Recovery, and Waste Programs, MS T-8F5  
Nuclear Regulatory Commission  
Washington, DC 20555

301-415-7319

[john.tappert@nrc.gov](mailto:john.tappert@nrc.gov)

For NEPA documents relating to new reactor licensing activities:

Mr. Scott Flanders  
Division of Site and Environmental Reviews  
Office of New Reactors, T7 F03M  
Nuclear Regulatory Commission  
Washington, DC 20555

301-415-1634

[scott.flanders@nrc.gov](mailto:scott.flanders@nrc.gov)

**Overseas Private Investment Corporation**

[www.opic.gov](http://www.opic.gov)

Ms. Mary Boomgard  
Director, Environmental Group  
Overseas Private Investment Corporation  
1100 New York Avenue, NW  
Washington, DC 20527

202-336-8732

[mboom@opic.gov](mailto:mboom@opic.gov)

**Small Business Administration**

[www.sba.gov](http://www.sba.gov)

SBA is interested in NEPA documents for energy use and energy efficiency programs and projects.

Mr. Eric Benderson  
Associate General Counsel for Litigation  
Office of Litigation  
Small Business Administration  
409 Third Street, SW, Suite 7200  
Washington, DC 20416-0001

202-205-6636

[eric.benderson@sba.gov](mailto:eric.benderson@sba.gov)

**Tennessee Valley Authority**

[www.tva.gov](http://www.tva.gov)

Dr. Charles P. Nicholson  
Senior NEPA Compliance Specialist  
Tennessee Valley Authority  
400 West Summit Hill Drive, WT 11D  
Knoxville, TN 37902-1499

865-632-3582

[cpnicholson@tva.gov](mailto:cpnicholson@tva.gov)

**U.S. Agency for International Development**

[www.usaid.gov/our\\_work/environment/compliance](http://www.usaid.gov/our_work/environment/compliance)

Mr. Victor Bullen  
Acting Agency Environmental Coordinator  
E3 Bureau Environmental Officer  
U.S. Agency for International Development  
Ronald Reagan Building, Room 6.8  
1300 Pennsylvania Avenue, NW  
Washington, DC 20523-6802

202-712-4634

[vbullen@usaid.gov](mailto:vbullen@usaid.gov)

## STATES, TERRITORIES, AND STATE GOVERNMENT ASSOCIATIONS

The following is a list of NEPA Points of Contact for states and territories (American Samoa, Guam, the Northern Mariana Islands, Puerto Rico, and the U.S. Virgin Islands), as designated by the Governors directly or through the process under Executive Order 12372, *Intergovernmental Review of Federal Programs*. Normally, an EA should be addressed to the NEPA Point of Contact. Normally, an EIS should be addressed to both the Governor and the NEPA Point of Contact. For the names and addresses of current Governors, access [www.nga.org](http://www.nga.org) and select Governors.

State government associations are listed following State and Territory NEPA Points of Contact.

### NEPA POINTS OF CONTACT FOR STATES AND TERRITORIES

#### Alabama

Mr. Russell Kelly  
Chief, Permits and Services Division  
Alabama Department of Environmental Management  
1400 Coliseum Boulevard  
Montgomery, AL 36110-2400  
334-271-7714  
[rak@adem.state.al.us](mailto:rak@adem.state.al.us)

#### Alaska

Mr. Gary Mendivil  
Environmental Program Specialist  
State of Alaska, Department of Environmental  
Conservation  
PO Box 111800  
Juneau, AK 99811-1800  
907-465-5061  
[gary.mendivil@alaska.gov](mailto:gary.mendivil@alaska.gov)

#### American Samoa

Mr. Ali'itama (Tama) Sotoa  
Director  
Territorial Energy Office of American Samoa  
Energy House  
Pago Pago, AS 96799  
684-699-5050  
[aliitama1sotoa@gmail.com](mailto:aliitama1sotoa@gmail.com)

#### Arizona

Ms. Sherri Zendri  
Administrative Counsel  
Arizona Department of Environmental Quality  
1110 West Washington Street  
Phoenix, AZ 85007  
602-771-2242  
[zendri.sherri@azdeq.gov](mailto:zendri.sherri@azdeq.gov)

#### Arkansas

Mr. Tracy L. Copeland  
Manager, Arkansas State Clearinghouse  
Office of Intergovernmental Services  
Department of Finance and Administration  
PO Box 8031  
Little Rock, AR 72203  
501-682-1074  
[tracy.copeland@dfa.state.ar.us](mailto:tracy.copeland@dfa.state.ar.us)

#### California

The State of California requests that all lead agencies provide one Notice of Completion form with each set of environmental documents submitted, obtained at [www.opr.ca.gov](http://www.opr.ca.gov).

Mr. Scott Morgan  
Director, California State Clearinghouse  
Governor's Office of Planning and Research  
PO Box 3044  
Sacramento, CA 95812-3044  
916-445-0613  
[state.clearinghouse@opr.ca.gov](mailto:state.clearinghouse@opr.ca.gov)

#### Colorado

Ms. Martha E. Rudolph  
Environmental Programs Director  
State of Colorado  
Department of Public Health and Environment  
4300 Cherry Creek Drive South  
Denver, CO 80246-1530  
303-692-3397  
[martha.rudolph@state.co.us](mailto:martha.rudolph@state.co.us)

**Connecticut**

Mr. Robert Kaliszewski  
Chief, Bureau of Central Services  
Department of Energy and Environmental Protection  
State of Connecticut  
79 Elm Street  
Hartford, CT 06106-5127  
860-424-3097  
[robert.kaliszewski@ct.gov](mailto:robert.kaliszewski@ct.gov)

**Delaware**

Mr. David S. Small  
Cabinet Secretary  
DNREC, State of Delaware  
89 Kings Highway  
Dover, DE 19901  
302-739-9000  
[david.small@state.de.us](mailto:david.small@state.de.us)

**District of Columbia**

Hamid Karimi, Ph.D.  
Deputy Director  
District Department of the Environment  
Natural Resources Administration  
1200 First Street, N.E.  
Washington, DC 20002  
202-535-2277  
[d DOE@dc.gov](mailto:d DOE@dc.gov)

**Florida**

The State of Florida requests 45 days for review of draft EAs and 60 days for actions under the Coastal Zone Management Act.

Mr. Chris Stahl  
Clearinghouse Coordinator  
Florida State Clearinghouse  
Florida Dept. of Environmental Protection  
2600 Blair Stone, MS 47  
Tallahassee, FL 32399-2400  
850-717-9076  
[chris.stahl@dep.state.fl.us](mailto:chris.stahl@dep.state.fl.us)

**Georgia**

For NEPA documents involving radiation or the Savannah River Site:

Mr. Barty Simonton  
Environmental Compliance Specialist  
Georgia Environmental Protection Division  
Environmental Radiation Program  
4244 International Parkway, Suite 120  
Atlanta, GA 30354

404-362-2755  
[barty.simonton@dnr.state.ga.us](mailto:barty.simonton@dnr.state.ga.us)

For other NEPA documents:

Director, Environmental Protection Division  
Georgia Department of Natural Resources  
Suite 1456, East Tower  
2 Martin Luther King, Jr. Drive  
Atlanta, GA 30334

404-656-4713  
(no email available)

**Guam**

Ms. Yvette Cruz  
Acting Administrator  
Guam Environmental Protection Agency  
Building 17-3304 Mariner Avenue  
Barrigada, Guam 96921

671-300-4761  
[yvette.cruz@epa.guam.gov](mailto:yvette.cruz@epa.guam.gov)

**Hawaii**

Mr. Scott Glenn  
Director  
Office of Environmental Quality Control  
State of Hawaii  
235 South Beretania Street, Suite 702  
Honolulu, HI 96813

808-586-4185  
[oeqc@doh.hawaii.gov](mailto:oeqc@doh.hawaii.gov)

## State NEPA Points of Contact

### Idaho

The INL Oversight Program is interested in NEPA documents relating to INL defense programs (stockpile stewardship and management, tritium production), coal technology, environmental management, and nuclear energy (including space power systems, naval reactors). The State of Idaho requests 30 days for review of a draft EA.

Ms. Susan Burke  
INL Oversight Program  
Idaho Department of Environmental Quality  
1410 North Hilton Street  
Boise, ID 83706

208-373-0428  
[susan.burke@deq.idaho.gov](mailto:susan.burke@deq.idaho.gov)

and

Ms. Kerry Martin  
Regional Manager  
INL Oversight Program  
Idaho Department of Environmental Quality  
900 North Skyline Drive, Suite B  
Idaho Falls, ID 83402

208-528-2600  
[kerry.martin@deq.idaho.gov](mailto:kerry.martin@deq.idaho.gov)

### Illinois

The Illinois Emergency Management Agency is interested in NEPA documents involving radiation.

Mr. Wayne Rosenthal  
Director  
Illinois Department of Natural Resources  
One Natural Resources Way  
Springfield, IL 62702-1271

217-785-0075  
[wayne.a.rosenthal@illinois.gov](mailto:wayne.a.rosenthal@illinois.gov)

and

Ms. Lisa Bonnett  
Director  
Illinois Environmental Protection Agency  
1021 North Grand Avenue East  
PO Box 19276  
Springfield, IL 62794-9276

217-782-9540  
[lisa.bonnett@illinois.gov](mailto:lisa.bonnett@illinois.gov)

and

Mr. Joseph Klinger  
Assistant Director  
Illinois Emergency Management Agency  
2200 South Dirksen Parkway  
Springfield, IL 62703

217-785-9868  
[joe.klinger@illinois.gov](mailto:joe.klinger@illinois.gov)

### Indiana

Mr. Brian Rockensuess  
Business, Agriculture, and Legislative Liaison  
Indiana Department of Environmental Management  
100 North Senate Avenue, Room 1301  
Indianapolis, IN 46204

317-234-3386  
[brockens@idem.in.gov](mailto:brockens@idem.in.gov)

### Iowa

Mr. Ed Tormey  
Legal Services Bureau Chief  
Iowa Department of Natural Resources  
Henry A. Wallace Building  
502 East Ninth Street  
Des Moines, IA 50319-0034

515-725-8373  
[ed.tormey@dnr.iowa.gov](mailto:ed.tormey@dnr.iowa.gov)

NEPA documents concerning radioactive shipments should also be sent to:

Ms. Joyce Flinn  
Iowa Department of Homeland Security and  
Emergency Management  
7900 Hickman – Suite 500  
Windsor Heights, IA 50324

515-323-4313  
[joyce.flinn@iowa.gov](mailto:joyce.flinn@iowa.gov)

### Kansas

Mr. John Mitchell  
Director, Division of Environment  
Kansas Department of Health and Environment  
1000 Southwest Jackson Street  
Curtis Building, Suite 400  
Topeka, KS 66612-1367

785-296-1535  
[jmitchell@kdheks.gov](mailto:jmitchell@kdheks.gov)

**Kentucky**

Mr. Ronald T. Price  
Staff Assistant  
Office of the Commissioner  
Department for Environmental Protection  
State of Kentucky  
300 Fair Oaks Lane  
Frankfort, KY 40601  
  
502-564-2150 (ext. 3125)  
[ronald.price@ky.gov](mailto:ronald.price@ky.gov)

**Louisiana**

Dr. Chuck Carr Brown  
Secretary  
Louisiana Department of Environmental Quality  
PO Box 4301  
Baton Rouge, LA 70821-4301  
  
225-219-3950  
(Administrative Assistant)  
[marian.mergist@la.gov](mailto:marian.mergist@la.gov)

**Maine**

Mr. Paul Mercer  
Commissioner  
Department of Environmental Protection  
State of Maine  
17 State House Station  
28 Tyson Drive  
Augusta, ME 04333  
  
207-287-2812  
[paul.mercer@maine.gov](mailto:paul.mercer@maine.gov)

**Maryland**

Ms. Linda C. Janey, JD  
Assistant Secretary for Clearinghouse  
and Communications  
Maryland Department of Planning  
301 West Preston Street, Suite 1100  
Baltimore, MD 21201-2305  
  
410-767-4490  
[mdp.clearinghouse@maryland.gov](mailto:mdp.clearinghouse@maryland.gov)

**Massachusetts**

Ms. Deirdre Buckley  
Director  
Massachusetts Environmental Policy Act Office  
Executive Office of Energy and Environmental  
Affairs  
100 Cambridge Street, 9<sup>th</sup> Floor  
Boston, MA 02114  
  
617-626-1044  
[deidre.buckley@state.ma.us](mailto:deidre.buckley@state.ma.us)

**Michigan**

Mr. Edward Hug  
Regional Review Coordinator  
Southeast Michigan Council of Governments  
1001 Woodward Street, Suite 1400  
Detroit, MI 48226-1904  
  
313-324-3335  
[hug@semcog.org](mailto:hug@semcog.org)

**Minnesota**

Mr. Will Seuffert  
Executive Director  
Minnesota Environmental Quality Board  
520 Lafayette Road North  
Saint Paul, MN 55055  
  
651-757-2873  
[will.seuffert@state.mn.us](mailto:will.seuffert@state.mn.us)

**Mississippi**

Mr. Gary Rikard  
Executive Director  
Mississippi Department of Environmental Quality  
PO Box 2261  
Jackson, MS 39225-2261  
  
601-961-5000  
[grikard@mdeq.ms.gov](mailto:grikard@mdeq.ms.gov)

**Missouri**

Mr. Robert Stout  
Chief of Policy  
Missouri Department of Natural Resources  
PO Box 176  
Jefferson City, MO 65102  
  
573-751-7402  
[robert.stout@dnr.mo.gov](mailto:robert.stout@dnr.mo.gov)

**Montana**

Ms. Hope Stockwell  
Legislative Environmental Policy Office  
State of Montana  
State Capitol, Room 171  
PO Box 201704  
Helena, MT 59620-1704  
  
406-444-9280  
[hstockwell@mt.gov](mailto:hstockwell@mt.gov)

## State NEPA Points of Contact

### Nebraska

Ms. Tricia Scott  
Department of Environmental Quality  
State of Nebraska  
1200 N Street, Suite 400  
Lincoln, NE 68509-8922  
  
402-471-6974  
[tricia.scott@nebraska.gov](mailto:tricia.scott@nebraska.gov)

### Nevada

Mr. Skip Canfield  
Nevada State Clearinghouse  
Department of Conservation and Natural Resources  
901 South Stewart Street, Suite 5003  
Carson City, NV 89701-5249  
  
775-684-2723  
[nevadaclearinghouse@lands.nv.gov](mailto:nevadaclearinghouse@lands.nv.gov)

### New Hampshire

Mr. Eugene Forbes  
Director, Water Division  
New Hampshire Department  
of Environmental Services  
PO Box 95  
Concord, NH 03302-0095  
  
603-271-3308  
[eugene.forbes@des.nh.gov](mailto:eugene.forbes@des.nh.gov)

### New Jersey

Mr. John Gray  
Office of Permit Coordination  
and Environmental Review  
New Jersey Department of Environmental Protection  
PO Box 401-07J  
Trenton, NJ 08625-0418  
  
609-292-3600  
[john.gray@dep.nj.gov](mailto:john.gray@dep.nj.gov)

### New Mexico

Mr. Ryan Cook Flynn  
Secretary  
New Mexico Environment Department  
1190 St. Francis Drive  
Room N4050  
Santa Fe, NM 87502  
  
505-827-2855  
[ryan.flynn@state.nm.us](mailto:ryan.flynn@state.nm.us)

### New York

Mr. Jack Nasca  
Director, Division of Environmental Permits  
and Pollution Prevention  
Department of Environmental Conservation  
State of New York  
625 Broadway  
Albany, NY 12233-1750  
  
518-402-9180  
[jack.nasca@dec.ny.gov](mailto:jack.nasca@dec.ny.gov)

### North Carolina

State Environmental Review Clearinghouse  
North Carolina Department of Administration  
1301 Mail Service Center  
Raleigh, NC 27699-1301

For express deliveries:

116 West Jones Street, Suite 5106  
Raleigh, NC 27603

919-807-2425  
[state.clearinghouse@doa.nc.gov](mailto:state.clearinghouse@doa.nc.gov)

### North Dakota

Ms. Bonnie Malo  
Director – Division of Community Services  
North Dakota Division of Community Services  
Department of Commerce  
PO Box 2057  
Bismarck, ND 58502-2057

701-328-2476  
[bmalo@nd.gov](mailto:bmalo@nd.gov)

### Northern Mariana Islands

Ms. Thelma B. Inos  
CNMI Energy Division  
Northern Mariana Islands  
PO Box 500340  
Saipan, MP 96950

670-644-4480  
[cnmienergy@gmail.com](mailto:cnmienergy@gmail.com)

### Ohio

Ms. Bonnie Buthker  
District Chief, Southwest District Office  
Ohio Environmental Protection Agency  
401 East Fifth Street  
Dayton, OH 45402-2911

937-285-6469  
[bonnie.buthker@epa.ohio.gov](mailto:bonnie.buthker@epa.ohio.gov)

**Oklahoma**

Mr. Tyler Powell  
Deputy Secretary of Environment  
Office of the Secretary of Energy & Environment  
State of Oklahoma  
204 N Robinson Ave., Suite 1010 Oklahoma City, OK  
73102  
  
405-522-7099  
[tyler.powell@ee.ok.gov](mailto:tyler.powell@ee.ok.gov)

**Oregon**

Mr. Pete Shepherd  
Interim Director, Department of Environmental Quality  
State of Oregon  
Department of Environmental Quality  
811 SW 6<sup>th</sup> Avenue  
Portland, OR 97204-1390  
  
503-229-5300  
[shepherd.pete@deq.state.or.us](mailto:shepherd.pete@deq.state.or.us)  
or [deq.info@deq.state.or.us](mailto:deq.info@deq.state.or.us)

**Pennsylvania**

Ms. Hayley L. Book  
Pennsylvania Department  
of Environmental Protection  
Rachel Carson State Office Building  
400 Market Street, 16<sup>th</sup> Floor  
Harrisburg, PA 17105-2063  
  
717-783-8727  
[hbook@pa.gov](mailto:hbook@pa.gov)

**Puerto Rico**

Hon. Carmen E. Guerrero Pérez  
Secretary  
Puerto Rico Department of Natural and  
Environmental Resources  
PO Box 366147  
San Juan, PR 00936  
  
787-999-2283  
[cguerrero@drna.gobierno.pr](mailto:cguerrero@drna.gobierno.pr)

**Rhode Island**

Mr. Parag Agrawal  
Associate Director, Division of Planning  
State of Rhode Island  
One Capitol Hill  
Providence, RI 02908  
  
401-222-6496  
[parag.agrawal@doa.ri.gov](mailto:parag.agrawal@doa.ri.gov)

and

Ms. Janet Coit  
Director  
Department of Environmental Management  
State of Rhode Island  
235 Promenade Street  
Providence, RI 02908-5767  
  
401-222-4700 (ext. 2409)  
[janet.coit@dem.ri.gov](mailto:janet.coit@dem.ri.gov)

and

Ms. Carol Grant  
Commissioner for Energy Resources  
State of Rhode Island  
One Capitol Hill  
Providence, RI 02908  
  
401-574-9100  
[carol.grant@energy.ri.gov](mailto:carol.grant@energy.ri.gov)

**South Carolina**

Ms. Shelly Wilson  
Permitting and Federal Facilities Liaison  
South Carolina Department of Health and  
Environmental Control  
2600 Bull Street  
Columbia, SC 29201  
  
803-898-3138  
[wilsonmd@dhec.sc.gov](mailto:wilsonmd@dhec.sc.gov)

**South Dakota**

Nick Emme  
Staff Attorney  
South Dakota Department of Environment  
and Natural Resources  
523 East Capitol Avenue  
Pierre, SD 57501-3181  
  
605-773-5559  
[nick.emme@state.sd.us](mailto:nick.emme@state.sd.us)

## State NEPA Points of Contact

### Tennessee

Ms. Kendra Abkowitz  
Director, Office of Policy and Planning  
Tennessee Department of  
Environment and Conservation  
312 Rosa L. Parks Avenue, 2<sup>nd</sup> Floor  
Nashville, TN 37243-1548

615-532-8689  
[kendra.abkowitz@tn.gov](mailto:kendra.abkowitz@tn.gov)

and

Mr. Chudi Nwangwa  
Tennessee Dept of Environment and Conservation  
Division of Remediation  
DOE Oversight Office  
761 Emory Valley Road  
Oak Ridge, TN 37830-7072

865-220-6563  
[chudi.nwangwa@tn.gov](mailto:chudi.nwangwa@tn.gov)

For proposals affecting the Oak Ridge Reservation,  
also contact:

Ms. Amy Fitzgerald, Ph.D.  
Government Affairs and Information Services Director  
City of Oak Ridge  
PO Box 1  
Oak Ridge, TN 37831

865-425-3546  
[afitzgerald@oakridgetn.gov](mailto:afitzgerald@oakridgetn.gov)

### Texas

The State of Texas requests 45 days for review of draft  
EAs unless there is a clearly identified need for  
expedited review.

Mr. Craig Bean  
Governor's Advisor- Natural Resources  
State of Texas  
PO Box 12428

512-463-1778  
[craig.bean@gov.texas.gov](mailto:craig.bean@gov.texas.gov)

and

Mr. Steven Schar  
Governor's Advisor- Natural Resources  
State of Texas  
PO Box 12428

512-463-1778  
[steven.schar@gov.texas.gov](mailto:steven.schar@gov.texas.gov)

and

Mr. Ryan Vise  
Governor's Advisor – Natural Resources  
State of Texas  
PO Box 12428  
Austin, TX 78711

512-463-1778  
[ryan.vise@governor.state.tx.us](mailto:ryan.vise@governor.state.tx.us)

### Utah

Ms. Sindy Smith  
RDCC Coordinator  
Office of the Governor  
Public Lands Policy Coordination Office  
State of Utah  
5110 State Office Building  
Salt Lake City, UT 84114-1107

801-537-9193  
[sindysmith@utah.gov](mailto:sindysmith@utah.gov)

### Vermont

Mr. Christopher Recchia  
Commissioner  
Department of Public Service  
State of Vermont  
112 State Street  
Montpelier, VT 05620-2601

802-828-4071  
[chris.recchia@state.vt.us](mailto:chris.recchia@state.vt.us)

### Virgin Islands

Dr. Anita Roberts, Ph.D.  
Deputy Director, Federal Grants Management Unit  
Virgin Islands Office of Management and Budget  
5041 Norre Gade, 2<sup>nd</sup> Floor  
St. Thomas, VI 00802

340-774-5313, Ext. 325  
[anita.roberts@omb.vi.gov](mailto:anita.roberts@omb.vi.gov)

### Virginia

Ms. Bettina Sullivan  
Manager, Environmental Impact Review  
Virginia Department of Environmental Quality  
PO Box 1105  
Richmond, VA 23218

804-698-4204  
[bettina.sullivan@deq.virginia.gov](mailto:bettina.sullivan@deq.virginia.gov)



**Washington**

Ms. Annie Szvetecz  
SEPA Unit  
Washington Department of Ecology  
PO Box 47703  
Olympia, WA 98504-7703  
360-407-6922  
[separegister@ecy.wa.gov](mailto:separegister@ecy.wa.gov) (electronic submissions),  
[sepahelp@ecy.wa.gov](mailto:sepahelp@ecy.wa.gov) (questions)

**West Virginia**

Ms. Kelly A. Bragg  
Program Coordinator, Division of Energy  
State of West Virginia  
1900 Kanawha Boulevard  
Building #6, Room 620  
Charleston, WV 25305  
304-558-2234 (ext. 2004)  
[kelly.a.bragg@wv.gov](mailto:kelly.a.bragg@wv.gov)

**Wisconsin**

Mr. David Siebert  
Wisconsin Department of Natural Resources  
101 S. Webster Street  
Madison, WI 53707  
608-264-6048  
[david.siebert@wisconsin.gov](mailto:david.siebert@wisconsin.gov)

**Wyoming**

Mr. Jerimiah Rieman  
Natural Resources Policy Director  
Governor's Policy Office  
State of Wyoming  
Herschler Building, 2<sup>nd</sup> Floor East  
125 West 25<sup>th</sup> Street  
Cheyenne, WY 82002  
307-777-5629  
[jerimiah.rieman@wyo.gov](mailto:jerimiah.rieman@wyo.gov)

NEPA POINTS OF CONTACT FOR STATE GOVERNMENT ASSOCIATIONS

**Delaware River Basin Commission**

[www.state.nj.us/drbc](http://www.state.nj.us/drbc)

The Commission is interested in NEPA documents involving water quantity and quality, aquatic communities, and habitat within the Delaware River Basin; drilling in the Marcellus Shale; and unconventional natural gas drilling anywhere in the country.

Mr. Steven Tambini  
Executive Director  
Delaware River Basin Commission  
PO Box 7360  
25 State Police Drive  
West Trenton, NJ 08628-0360  
609-883-9500 (ext. 200)  
[steve.tambini@drbc.state.nj.us](mailto:steve.tambini@drbc.state.nj.us)

**Environmental Council of the States**

[www.ecos.org](http://www.ecos.org)

Ms. Carolyn Hanson  
Deputy Director  
Environmental Council of the States  
50 F Street, NW, Suite 350  
Washington, DC 20001  
202-266-4924  
[chanson@ecos.org](mailto:chanson@ecos.org)

**National Association of Attorneys General**

[www.naag.org](http://www.naag.org)

The Association is interested in NEPA documents relating to waste management and environmental restoration, and prefers to receive EIS notices of availability rather than EISs.

Mr. Chris Toth  
NAAG Deputy Executive Director/NAGTRI Director  
National Association of Attorneys General  
2030 M Street, NW, 8<sup>th</sup> Floor  
Washington, DC 20036  
202-326-6021  
[ctoth@naag.org](mailto:ctoth@naag.org)

**National Association of State Energy Officials**

[www.naseo.org](http://www.naseo.org)

Ms. Shemika Spencer  
Program Director  
National Association of State Energy Officials  
2107 Wilson Boulevard, Suite 850  
Arlington, VA 22201  
703-299-8800 (ext. 115)  
[sspencer@naseo.org](mailto:sspencer@naseo.org)

**National Association of Tribal Historic Preservation Officers**

[www.nathpo.org](http://www.nathpo.org)

Ms. D. Bambi Kraus  
President  
National Association of Tribal Historic Preservation Officers  
PO Box 19189  
Washington, DC 20036-9189  
202-628-8476  
[bambi@nathpo.org](mailto:bambi@nathpo.org)

**National Conference of State Historic Preservation Officers**

[www.ncshpo.org](http://www.ncshpo.org)

Mr. Erik Hein  
Executive Director  
National Conference of State Historic Preservation Officers  
444 North Capitol Street, NW, Suite 342  
Washington, DC 20001  
202-624-5465  
[hein@ncshpo.org](mailto:hein@ncshpo.org)

**National Governors Association**

[www.nga.org](http://www.nga.org)

The National Governors Association wishes to receive only NEPA documents that are national in scope.

Mr. Alex Whitaker  
Legislative Director  
Natural Resources Committee  
National Governors Association  
444 North Capitol Street, Suite 267  
Washington, DC 20001-1512  
202-624-5300  
[awhitaker@nga.org](mailto:awhitaker@nga.org)

**Southern States Energy Board**

[www.sseb.org](http://www.sseb.org)

Mr. Kenneth Nemeth  
Executive Director  
Southern States Energy Board  
6325 Amherst Court  
Peachtree Corners, GA 30092

770-242-7712  
[nemeth@sseb.org](mailto:nemeth@sseb.org)

**State and Tribal Government Working Group (STGWG)**

<http://energy.gov/node/485323>

The State and Tribal Government Working Group is a DOE-sponsored organization of 9 tribes, 16 states, National Association of Attorneys General, National Governors Association, and National Conference of State Legislatures. Consult with the DOE Point of Contact regarding NEPA public involvement issues.

Mr. Albert (Brandt) Petrasek  
State and Tribal Government Working Group  
Executive Committee  
DOE STGWG Point of Contact, EM 3.2  
1000 Independence Avenue, SW  
Washington, DC 20585

202-586-4818  
[albert.petrasek@em.doe.gov](mailto:albert.petrasek@em.doe.gov)

**Susquehanna River Basin Commission**

[www.srbc.net](http://www.srbc.net)

The Commission is interested in NEPA documents for DOE projects affecting the water resources of the Susquehanna River Basin and projects that may have interstate and Chesapeake Bay impacts.

Ms. Stephanie L. Richardson  
Secretary to the Commission  
Susquehanna River Basin Commission  
4423 N. Front Street  
Harrisburg, PA 17110-1788

717-238-0423 (ext. 1304)  
[srichardson@srbc.net](mailto:srichardson@srbc.net)

**Western Governors' Association**

[www.westgov.org](http://www.westgov.org)

The Western Governors' Association is interested in NEPA documents relating to air quality, transportation and disposition (storage and disposal) of nuclear materials and hazardous waste, site cleanup and long-term stewardship, and recycling.

Mr. Christopher Scolari  
Policy Advisor  
Western Governors' Association  
1600 Broadway, Suite 1700  
Denver, CO 80202

720-897-4541  
[cscolari@westgov.org](mailto:cscolari@westgov.org)

**Western Interstate Energy Board**

[westernenergyboard.org](http://westernenergyboard.org)

The Board is interested in programmatic NEPA documents relating to electricity supply (including international issues), energy efficiency, renewable energy, fossil energy, and issues pertaining to the Nuclear Waste Policy Act (but not remediation).

Mr. Maury Galbraith  
Executive Director  
Western Interstate Energy Board  
1600 Broadway, Suite 1700  
Denver, CO 80202

303-573-8910 (ext. 1)  
[mgalbraith@westernenergyboard.org](mailto:mgalbraith@westernenergyboard.org)

## NONGOVERNMENTAL ORGANIZATIONS

### **AFL-CIO**

[www.aflcio.org](http://www.aflcio.org)

Mr. Tom Trotter  
AFL-CIO Government Affairs  
815 16<sup>th</sup> Street, NW  
Washington, DC 20006

202-637-5084

[ttrotter@aflcio.org](mailto:ttrotter@aflcio.org)

and

Mr. Brad Markell  
Executive Director  
AFL-CIO Industrial Union Council  
815 16<sup>th</sup> Street, NW  
Washington, DC 20006

202-637-3966

[bmarkell@aflcio.org](mailto:bmarkell@aflcio.org)

### **Alliance for Nuclear Accountability**

[www.ananuclear.org](http://www.ananuclear.org)

The Alliance is interested in NEPA documents relating to nuclear weapons and nonproliferation, nuclear energy, remediation, waste management, and complex transformation.

Mr. Jay Coghlan  
Director

Alliance for Nuclear Accountability  
903 W. Alameda #325  
Santa Fe, NM 87501

505-989-7342

[jay@nukewatch.org](mailto:jay@nukewatch.org)

### **Alliance to Save Energy**

[www.ase.org](http://www.ase.org)

The Alliance requests NEPA documents relating to energy conservation, utility regulations, and energy efficiency.

Ms. Kateri Callahan  
President

Alliance to Save Energy  
1850 M Street, NW, Suite 1050  
Washington, DC 20036

202-857-0666

[kcallahan@ase.org](mailto:kcallahan@ase.org)

### **American Association of Blacks in Energy**

[www.aabe.org](http://www.aabe.org)

The Association is interested in all forms of energy, as well as environmental justice issues.

Mr. Tracey Woods  
American Association of Blacks in Energy  
1625 K Street, NW, #405  
Washington, DC 20006

202-371-9530

[twoods@aabe.org](mailto:twoods@aabe.org)

### **American Bird Conservancy**

[www.abcbirds.org](http://www.abcbirds.org)

The American Bird Conservancy is interested in NEPA documents relating to avian conservation, alternate or renewable energy, transmission lines and corridors, wind farms, solar projects, offshore energy, turbine technology, radar, and the national grid.

Mr. Darin Schroeder  
Vice President of Conservation Advocacy  
American Bird Conservancy  
1731 Connecticut Avenue, NW  
Washington, DC 20009

202-888-7476

[dschroeder@abcbirds.org](mailto:dschroeder@abcbirds.org)

### **American Boiler Manufacturers Association**

[www.abma.com](http://www.abma.com)

Mr. Scott Lynch  
President and Chief Executive Officer  
American Boiler Manufacturers Association  
8221 Old Courthouse Road, Suite 380  
Vienna, VA 22182

703-356-7172

[scott@abma.com](mailto:scott@abma.com)

### **American Coal Ash Association**

[www.aaa-usa.org](http://www.aaa-usa.org)

Mr. Thomas H. Adams  
Executive Director  
American Coal Ash Association  
38800 Country Club Drive  
Farmington Hills, MI 48331

720-870-7897

[thomas.adams@aaa-usa.org](mailto:thomas.adams@aaa-usa.org)

**American Fuel & Petrochemical Manufacturers**

[www.afpm.org](http://www.afpm.org)

Mr. David N. Friedman  
Vice President, Regulatory Affairs  
American Fuel & Petrochemical Manufacturers  
1667 K Street, NW, Suite 700  
Washington, DC 20006

202-457-0480

[dfriedman@afpm.org](mailto:dfriedman@afpm.org)

**American Lung Association**

[www.lung.org](http://www.lung.org)

Identify regional, state, and local contacts potentially interested in a NEPA review at

<http://www.lung.org/about-us/local-associations/>.

Ms. Janice Nolen  
Assistant Vice President  
National Policy  
American Lung Association  
1301 Pennsylvania Avenue, NW, Suite 800  
Washington, DC 20004

202-785-3355

[janice.nolen@lung.org](mailto:janice.nolen@lung.org)

**American Petroleum Institute**

[www.api.org](http://www.api.org)

API is interested in NEPA documents for DOE's fossil energy, energy efficiency, environmental management, and science programs.

Ms. Stacy Linden  
Vice President, General Counsel & Corporate Secretary  
American Petroleum Institute  
1220 L Street, NW  
Washington, DC 20005-4070

202-682-8229

[lindens@api.org](mailto:lindens@api.org)

**American Public Power Association**

[www.publicpower.org](http://www.publicpower.org)

Ms. Desmarie M. Waterhouse  
Acting Vice President of  
Government Relations & Counsel  
American Public Power Association  
2451 Crystal Drive, Ste. 1000  
Arlington, VA 22202

202-467-2930

[dwaterhouse@publicpower.org](mailto:dwaterhouse@publicpower.org)

**American Recreation Coalition**

[www.funoutdoors.com](http://www.funoutdoors.com)

The Coalition is interested in NEPA documents relating to energy efficiency, especially involving cars, trucks, boats and recreational vehicles.

Mr. Derrick Crandall  
President  
American Recreation Coalition  
1200 G Street, NW, Suite 650  
Washington, DC 20005

202-682-9530

[dcrandall@funoutdoors.com](mailto:dcrandall@funoutdoors.com)

**American Rivers**

[www.americanrivers.org](http://www.americanrivers.org)

American Rivers is interested in NEPA documents relating to natural gas development and hydraulic fracturing, hydropower, and the energy-water nexus. Identify regional contacts potentially interested in a NEPA review at [www.americanrivers.org/region](http://www.americanrivers.org/region).

Ms. Eileen Shader  
Director, River Restoration  
American Rivers  
1101 14<sup>th</sup> Street, NW, Suite 1400  
Washington, DC 20005

202-347-7550

[eshader@americanrivers.org](mailto:eshader@americanrivers.org)

**Blue Ridge Environmental Defense League, Inc.**

[www.bredl.org](http://www.bredl.org)

The League is interested in NEPA documents relating to defense programs, energy efficiency, fossil energy, environmental management, nuclear energy, plutonium fuel (fabrication and use), nuclear waste transportation, and science.

Mr. Louis Zeller  
Executive Director  
Blue Ridge Environmental Defense League, Inc.  
PO Box 88  
Glendale Springs, NC 28629

336-982-2691

[bredl@skybest.com](mailto:bredl@skybest.com)

## *Nongovernmental Organizations*

### **Canadian Electricity Association**

[www.electricity.ca](http://www.electricity.ca)

Canadian Electricity Association is interested in NEPA documents for Presidential permits for transmission lines.

Mr. Patrick Brown  
Director, U.S. Affairs  
Canadian Electricity Association  
275 Slater Street  
Ottawa, ON K1P 5H9 Canada

613-627-4124

[brown@electricity.ca](mailto:brown@electricity.ca)

### **Carolina Peace Resource Center**

[www.carolinapeace.org](http://www.carolinapeace.org)

Mr. Harry Rogers  
Community Activist  
Carolina Peace Resource Center  
305 South Saluda Avenue  
Columbia, SC 29205-3326

803-252-2221

[harryrogers@carolinapeace.org](mailto:harryrogers@carolinapeace.org)

### **Center for Biological Diversity**

[www.biologicaldiversity.org](http://www.biologicaldiversity.org)

Ms. Lisa Belenky  
Senior Attorney  
Center for Biological Diversity  
1212 Broadway, Suite 800  
Oakland, CA 94612

415-632-5307

[lbelenky@biologicaldiversity.org](mailto:lbelenky@biologicaldiversity.org)

and

Ms. Kassie Siegel  
Air Climate and Energy Director  
Center for Biological Diversity  
PO Box 549  
Joshua Tree, CA 92252

760-366-2232 (ext. 302)

[ksiegel@biologicaldiversity.org](mailto:ksiegel@biologicaldiversity.org)

### **Citizens for Alternatives to Radioactive Dumping (CARD)**

[www.cardnm.org](http://www.cardnm.org)

Ms. Janet Greenwald  
Citizens for Alternatives to Radioactive Dumping  
202 Harvard Street, SE  
Albuquerque, NM 87106

505-242-5511

[contactus@cardnm.org](mailto:contactus@cardnm.org)

### **Citizens for Nuclear Technology Awareness**

[www.c-n-t-a.com](http://www.c-n-t-a.com)

Citizens for Nuclear Technology Awareness is interested in NEPA documents relating to nuclear issues.

Mr. Michael D. Johnson  
Executive Director  
Citizens for Nuclear Technology Awareness  
1204 Whiskey Road, Suite B  
Aiken, SC 29803

803-649-3456

[cnta@bellsouth.net](mailto:cnta@bellsouth.net)

### **Clean Water Action**

[www.cleanwateraction.org](http://www.cleanwateraction.org)

Clean Water Action is interested in NEPA documents relating to water quality, wetlands, solid waste, and hazardous waste. Identify regional, state, and local contacts potentially interested in a NEPA review at [www.cleanwateraction.org/about/offices](http://www.cleanwateraction.org/about/offices).

Ms. Jennifer Peters  
Water Programs Director  
Clean Water Action  
1444 I Street, NW, Suite 400  
Washington, DC 20005

202-895-0420 (ext. 105)

[jpeters@cleanwater.org](mailto:jpeters@cleanwater.org)

### **Committee to Bridge the Gap**

[www.committeetobridgethegap.org](http://www.committeetobridgethegap.org)

The Committee is interested in NEPA documents relating to nuclear facilities, waste disposal, proliferation, and cleanup standards.

Committee to Bridge the Gap  
PO Box 4  
Ben Lomond, CA 95005

831-336-8003

[contact.cbg@gmail.com](mailto:contact.cbg@gmail.com)

**Concerned Citizens for Nuclear Safety**

[www.nuclearactive.org](http://www.nuclearactive.org)

Concerned Citizens for Nuclear Safety is interested in EISs involving DOE sites in New Mexico.

Ms. Joni Arends  
Executive Director  
Concerned Citizens for Nuclear Safety  
P.O. Box 31147  
Santa Fe, NM 87594-1147  
505-986-1973  
[jarends@nuclearactive.org](mailto:jarends@nuclearactive.org)  
or [cns@nuclearactive.org](mailto:cns@nuclearactive.org)

**Conservation Northwest**

[www.conservationnw.org](http://www.conservationnw.org)

Conservation Northwest is interested in NEPA documents involving fish and wildlife conservation.

Mr. Dave Wernitz  
Science and Conservation Director  
Conservation Northwest  
1208 Bay Street, Suite 201  
Bellingham, WA 98225  
360-671-9950 (ext. 114)  
[dwernitz@conservationnw.org](mailto:dwernitz@conservationnw.org)

**Ducks Unlimited, Inc.**

[www.ducks.org](http://www.ducks.org)

Ducks Unlimited is interested in NEPA documents relating to wetlands, especially restoration and mitigation banking issues. Identify regional contacts potentially interested in a NEPA review at [www.ducks.org/conservation/du-regional-offices](http://www.ducks.org/conservation/du-regional-offices).

Ducks Unlimited, Inc.  
1 Waterfowl Way  
Memphis, TN 38120-2351  
901-758-3825  
<http://www.ducks.org/about-du/contact-du-online>

**Earthjustice**

[www.earthjustice.org](http://www.earthjustice.org)

Mr. Timothy Ballo  
Staff Attorney  
Earthjustice  
1625 Massachusetts Avenue, NW, Suite 702  
Washington, DC 20036  
202-667-4500  
[tballo@earthjustice.org](mailto:tballo@earthjustice.org)

**Economists for Peace and Security**

[www.epsusa.org](http://www.epsusa.org)

Economists for Peace and Security is interested in NEPA documents relating to defense programs (stockpile stewardship and management, tritium production) and nuclear energy (space power systems, naval reactors).

Ms. Thea Harvey-Barratt  
Executive Director  
Economists for Peace and Security  
at the Levy Institute  
PO Box 5000  
Annandale on the Hudson, NY 12504  
845-758-0917  
[theaharvey@epsusa.org](mailto:theaharvey@epsusa.org)

**Edison Electric Institute**

[www.eei.org](http://www.eei.org)

The Edison Electric Institute is interested in NEPA documents involving facility siting, utility rights-of-way and their vegetation management, public lands, avian protection, and electric and magnetic fields.

Ms. Sarah Ball  
Edison Electric Institute  
701 Pennsylvania Avenue, NW  
Washington, DC 20004-2696  
202-508-5208  
[sball@eei.org](mailto:sball@eei.org)

**Electric Power Research Institute**

[www.epri.com](http://www.epri.com)

Ms. Barbara Bauman Tyran  
Executive Director, Government and External Relations  
Electric Power Research Institute  
1325 G Street NW, Suite 1080  
Washington, DC 20005  
202-293-7513  
[btyran@epri.com](mailto:btyran@epri.com)

**Energy Communities Alliance**

[www.energyca.org](http://www.energyca.org)

Energy Communities Alliance is interested in NEPA documents relating to DOE sites.

Mr. Seth Kirshenberg  
Executive Director  
Energy Communities Alliance  
1101 Connecticut Avenue, NW, Suite 1000  
Washington, DC 20036-4374  
202-828-2317  
[sethk@energyca.org](mailto:sethk@energyca.org)

**Environmental Defense Fund**

[www.edf.org](http://www.edf.org)

In addition to notifying the EDF contact below, identify regional contacts potentially interested in a NEPA review at [www.edf.org/page.cfm?tagID=361](http://www.edf.org/page.cfm?tagID=361).

Ms. Vickie Patton  
General Counsel  
Environmental Defense Fund  
2060 Broadway, Suite 300  
Boulder, CO 80302

303-447-7215  
[vpatton@edf.org](mailto:vpatton@edf.org)

**Environmental Defense Institute**

[www.environmental-defense-institute.org](http://www.environmental-defense-institute.org)

Mr. Chuck Broscius  
Board President  
Environmental Defense Institute  
PO Box 220  
Troy, ID 83871

208-835-5407  
[edinst@tds.net](mailto:edinst@tds.net)

**Federation of American Scientists**

[www.fas.org](http://www.fas.org)

The Federation of American Scientists wishes to receive only NEPA documents relating to nuclear issues.

Mr. Charles Ferguson  
President  
Federation of American Scientists  
1725 DeSales Street, NW, Suite 600  
Washington, DC 20036

202-454-4699  
[cferguson@fas.org](mailto:cferguson@fas.org)

**Friends of the Earth**

[www.foe.org](http://www.foe.org)

Mr. Erich Pica  
President  
Friends of the Earth  
1101 15<sup>th</sup> Street, NW, 11<sup>th</sup> Floor  
Washington, DC 20005

202-783-7400 (ext. 739)  
[epica@foe.org](mailto:epica@foe.org)

**Gas Technology Institute**

[www.gastechnology.org](http://www.gastechnology.org)

The Institute is interested in hazardous waste, energy efficiency, fossil energy policy issues, and renewable energy.

Mr. Edward Johnston  
Vice President of Research Operations  
Gas Technology Institute  
1700 South Mount Prospect Road  
Des Plaines, IL 60018-1804

847-768-0889  
[edward.johnston@gastechnology.org](mailto:edward.johnston@gastechnology.org)

**Government Accountability Project**

[www.whistleblower.org](http://www.whistleblower.org)

The Project is interested in nuclear-related projects and issues related to the Hanford Site, the Nevada National Security Site, and Los Alamos National Laboratory.

Mr. Louis Clark  
President  
Government Accountability Project  
1612 K Street, NW, Suite 1100  
Washington, DC 20006

202-457-0034 (ext. 129)  
[louisc@whistleblower.org](mailto:louisc@whistleblower.org)

**Greenaction for Health and Environmental Justice**

[www.greenaction.org](http://www.greenaction.org)

Greenaction is interested in receiving NEPA documents relating to environmental justice, cultural resources, nuclear and waste facilities, uranium issues, and site remediation.

Mr. Bradley Angel  
Greenaction for Health and Environmental Justice  
559 Ellis Street  
San Francisco, CA 94109

415-447-3904  
[greenaction@greenaction.org](mailto:greenaction@greenaction.org)

**Hanford Challenge**

[www.hanfordchallenge.org](http://www.hanfordchallenge.org)

Hanford Challenge is interested in NEPA documents relating to the Hanford site and waste transportation.

Mr. Tom Carpenter  
Executive Director  
Hanford Challenge  
219 First Avenue South, Suite 310  
Seattle, WA 98104

206-292-2850 (ext. 22)  
[tomc@hanfordchallenge.org](mailto:tomc@hanfordchallenge.org)



**Healthy Environment Alliance of Utah (HEAL Utah)**

[www.healutah.org](http://www.healutah.org)

HEAL Utah is interested in NEPA documents relating to Utah's environment and public health.

Mr. Matt Pacenza  
Executive Director  
HEAL Utah  
824 South 400 West, Suite B111  
Salt Lake City, UT 84101

801-355-5055  
[matt@healutah.org](mailto:matt@healutah.org)

**Heart of America Northwest**

[www.hanfordcleanup.org](http://www.hanfordcleanup.org)

Heart of America Northwest is interested in NEPA documents for the Hanford site, the Pacific Northwest National Laboratory, and Greater-Than-Class C Waste.

Mr. Gerald Pollet  
Executive Director  
Heart of America Northwest  
444 NE Ravenna Boulevard, Suite 406  
Seattle, WA 98115

206-382-1014  
[office@hoanw.org](mailto:office@hoanw.org)

**Indigenous Environmental Network**

[www.ienearth.org](http://www.ienearth.org)

The Indigenous Environmental Network is interested in DOE programs and projects that involve American Indian/Alaska Native self-determination and treaty rights or are located near American Indian lands.

Mr. Tom Goldtooth  
Executive Director  
Indigenous Environmental Network  
PO Box 485  
Bemidji, MN 56619

218-751-4967  
[ien@igc.org](mailto:ien@igc.org)

**Institute for Energy and Environmental Research**

[www.ieer.org](http://www.ieer.org)

The Institute is interested in NEPA documents relating to defense programs and nuclear weapons complex sites, environmental management, and renewable energy.

Mr. Arjun Makhijani, Ph.D.  
President  
Institute for Energy and Environmental Research  
6935 Laurel Avenue, Suite 201  
Takoma Park, MD 20912

301-270-5500  
[info@ieer.org](mailto:info@ieer.org)

**Institute for Energy Research**

[www.instituteforenergyresearch.org](http://www.instituteforenergyresearch.org)

Mr. Daniel Simmons  
Director of Regulatory Affairs  
Institute for Energy Research  
1155 15th Street, NW, Suite 900  
Washington, DC 20005

202-621-2950  
[dsimmons@ierdc.org](mailto:dsimmons@ierdc.org)

**Institute for Science and International Security**

[www.isis-online.org](http://www.isis-online.org)

Mr. David Albright  
President  
Institute for Science and International Security  
236 Massachusetts Avenue, NE, Suite 305  
Washington, DC 20002

202-547-3633  
[albright@isis-online.org](mailto:albright@isis-online.org)

**League of Women Voters**

[www.lwv.org](http://www.lwv.org)

Identify state and local contacts potentially interested in a NEPA review at <http://www.lwv.org/get-involved/local-leagues>.

Ms. Jessica Jones  
Grassroots Advocacy Manager  
League of Women Voters  
1730 M Street, NW, Suite 1000  
Washington, DC 20036

202-263-1328  
[jjones@lwv.org](mailto:jjones@lwv.org)

**Los Alamos Study Group**

[www.lasg.org](http://www.lasg.org)

Mr. Greg Mello  
Los Alamos Study Group  
2901 Summit Place NE  
Albuquerque, NM 87106  
505-577-8563 cell

505-265-1200 office  
[gmello@lasg.org](mailto:gmello@lasg.org)

## *Nongovernmental Organizations*

### **National Audubon Society**

[www.audubon.org](http://www.audubon.org)

The National Audubon Society is interested in NEPA documents relating to wildlife and habitat conservation, and environmental management and restoration. Identify state and local contacts potentially interested in a NEPA review at <http://www.audubon.org/audubon-near-you>.

Dr. Margaret (Peg) Olsen  
Chief Conservation Officer  
National Audubon Society  
225 Varick Street, 7<sup>th</sup> Floor  
New York, NY 10014

212-979-3000  
[polson@audubon.org](mailto:polson@audubon.org)

### **National Coal Council**

[www.nationalcoalcoal.org](http://www.nationalcoalcoal.org)

Ms. Janet Gellici  
Chief Executive Officer  
National Coal Council  
1101 Pennsylvania Ave, NW, Suite 600  
Washington, DC 20004

202-756-4524  
[jgellici@ncc1.org](mailto:jgellici@ncc1.org)

### **National Community Action Foundation**

[www.ncaf.org](http://www.ncaf.org)

The Foundation requests only electronic notification for NEPA documents relating to environmental justice.

Ms. Meg Power, Ph.D.  
Senior Advisor  
National Community Action Foundation  
400 North Capitol Street, Suite G-80  
Washington, DC 20001

202-842-2092  
[megpower@ncaf.org](mailto:megpower@ncaf.org)

### **National Congress of American Indians**

[www.ncai.org](http://www.ncai.org)

Ms. Jacqueline Pata  
Executive Director  
National Congress of American Indians  
Embassy of Tribal Nations  
1516 P Street, NW  
Washington, DC 20005

202-466-7767 (ext. 218)  
[jpata@ncai.org](mailto:jpata@ncai.org)

### **National Mining Association**

[www.nma.org](http://www.nma.org)

Ms. Katie Sweeney  
General Counsel  
National Mining Association  
101 Constitution Avenue, NW  
Suite 500 East  
Washington, DC 20001

202-463-2600  
[ksweeney@nma.org](mailto:ksweeney@nma.org)

### **National Parks Conservation Association**

[www.npca.org](http://www.npca.org)

Ms. Libby Fayad  
National Parks Conservation Association  
777 6<sup>th</sup> Street, NW, Suite 700  
Washington, DC 20001

202-223-6722 (ext. 235)  
[lfayad@npca.org](mailto:lfayad@npca.org)

### **National Petroleum Council**

[www.npc.org](http://www.npc.org)

Ms. Carla Byrd  
Information Coordinator  
National Petroleum Council  
1625 K Street, NW  
Suite 600  
Washington, DC 20006

202-393-6100  
[cbyrd@npc.org](mailto:cbyrd@npc.org)

### **National Rural Electric Cooperative Association**

[www.nreca.org](http://www.nreca.org)

Mr. Rae Cronmiller  
Environmental Counsel  
National Rural Electric Cooperative Association  
4301 Wilson Boulevard, EP11-253  
Arlington, VA 22203

703-907-5791  
[rae.cronmiller@nreca.org](mailto:rae.cronmiller@nreca.org)

**National Trust for Historic Preservation**

[www.preservationnation.org](http://www.preservationnation.org)

The organization is interested in NEPA documents relating to cultural resources and historic preservation. Identify regional offices potentially interested in a NEPA review at <https://savingplaces.org/we-are-saving-places>.

Ms. Elizabeth Merritt  
Deputy General Counsel  
National Trust for Historic Preservation  
2600 Virginia Avenue, Suite 1100  
Washington, DC 20037  
202-297-4133  
[emerritt@savingplaces.org](mailto:emerritt@savingplaces.org)

**National Wildlife Federation**

[www.nwf.org](http://www.nwf.org)

The National Wildlife Federation is interested in NEPA documents relating to wildlife habitat, biofuels, tar sands, oil shale, coal to liquids, and carbon emissions. Identify regional contacts potentially interested in a NEPA review at [www.nwf.org/regional-centers.aspx](http://www.nwf.org/regional-centers.aspx).

Mr. Jim Lyon  
Vice President for Conservation Policy  
National Wildlife Federation  
Suite 430  
1990 K Street NW  
Washington, DC 20006  
202-797-6888  
[lyon@nwf.org](mailto:lyon@nwf.org)

**Natural Resources Defense Council (NRDC)**

[www.nrdc.org](http://www.nrdc.org)

Ms. Kit Kennedy  
Co-Director, Energy & Transportation Program  
Natural Resources Defense Council  
40 West 20th Street  
11th floor  
New York, NY 10011  
212-727-2700  
[kkennedy@nrdc.org](mailto:kkennedy@nrdc.org)

For NEPA documents regarding climate change, power generation, energy efficiency, and energy policy:

Mr. David Hawkins  
Director, Climate Program  
Natural Resources Defense Council  
1152 15th Street, NW, Suite 300  
Washington, DC 20005  
202-289-2400  
[dhawkins@nrdc.org](mailto:dhawkins@nrdc.org)

**The Nature Conservancy**

[www.nature.org](http://www.nature.org)

The Nature Conservancy wishes to receive electronic notification, not paper copies, of NEPA documents. Identify regional and state contacts potentially interested in a NEPA review at [www.nature.org/contactus/contact](http://www.nature.org/contactus/contact).

Mr. Jimmie Powell  
Senior Policy Advisor for Energy  
The Nature Conservancy  
4245 North Fairfax Drive  
Arlington, VA 22203-1606  
703-841-7416  
[jpowell@tnc.org](mailto:jpowell@tnc.org)

**New England Wild Flower Society, Inc.**

[www.newenglandwild.org](http://www.newenglandwild.org)

The New England Wild Flower Society is interested in NEPA documents relating to rare or endangered plant species and their protection and conservation.

Mr. William Brumback  
Conservation Director  
New England Wild Flower Society, Inc.  
180 Hemenway Road  
Framingham, MA 01701-2699  
508-877-7630 (ext. 3201)  
[bbrumback@newenglandwild.org](mailto:bbrumback@newenglandwild.org)

**Nuclear Energy Institute**

[www.nei.org](http://www.nei.org)

Ms. Lisa Steward  
Senior Director and Assistant Corporate Secretary  
Member Relations  
Nuclear Energy Institute  
1201 F Street, NW, Suite 1100  
Washington, DC 20004  
202-739-8006  
[lis@nei.org](mailto:lis@nei.org)

**Nuclear Information and Resource Service**

[www.nirs.org](http://www.nirs.org)

Ms. Diane D'Arrigo  
Radioactive Waste Project Director  
Nuclear Information and Resource Service  
6930 Carroll Avenue, Suite 340  
Takoma Park, MD 20912  
301-270-6477  
[dianed@nirs.org](mailto:dianed@nirs.org)  
and

## *Nongovernmental Organizations*

Ms. Mary Olson  
Southeast Office Director  
Nuclear Information and Resource Service  
PO Box 7586  
Asheville, NC 28802  
828-252-8409  
[maryo@nirs.org](mailto:maryo@nirs.org)

### **Nuclear Watch of New Mexico**

[www.nukewatch.org](http://www.nukewatch.org)

Nuclear Watch of New Mexico is interested in NEPA documents relating to environmental management and stockpile stewardship programs, and new or upgraded nuclear weapons facilities at Los Alamos National Laboratory, Sandia National Laboratory, the Pantex Plant, and the Waste Isolation Pilot Plant.

Mr. Scott Kovac  
Alliance for Nuclear Accountability  
903 W. Alameda #325  
Santa Fe, NM 87501  
505-989-7342  
[scott@nukewatch.org](mailto:scott@nukewatch.org)

and

Mr. Jay Coghlan  
Director  
Nuclear Watch of New Mexico  
903 W. Alameda #325  
Santa Fe, NM 87501  
505-989-7342  
[jay@nukewatch.org](mailto:jay@nukewatch.org)

### **Nuclear Watch South**

[www.nonukesyall.org](http://www.nonukesyall.org)

Nuclear Watch South is interested in NEPA documents relating to nuclear weapons, nuclear energy, and nuclear waste. Their focus is on plutonium disposition, reactor safety, new reactors, onsite dry cask storage of spent nuclear fuel, and high-level radioactive waste tanks at the Savannah River Site.

Ms. Glenn Carroll  
Coordinator  
Nuclear Watch South  
PO Box 8574  
Atlanta, GA 31106  
404-378-4263  
[info@nonukesyall.org](mailto:info@nonukesyall.org)

### **Oak Ridge Environmental Peace Alliance**

[www.orepa.org](http://www.orepa.org)

Mr. Ralph Hutchison  
Coordinator  
Oak Ridge Environmental Peace Alliance  
PO Box 5743  
Oak Ridge, TN 37831  
865-776-5050  
[orep@earthlink.net](mailto:orep@earthlink.net)

### **The Partnership Project**

[www.saveourenvironment.org](http://www.saveourenvironment.org)

The Partnership Project, is a collaborative of 20 groups, including the largest environmental organizations in the United States.

Mr. Stephen Schima  
NEPA Campaign Director  
The Partnership Project  
1615 M Street, NW  
Washington, DC 20036  
503-830-5753  
[stephen@saveourenvironment.org](mailto:stephen@saveourenvironment.org)

### **Peace Action**

[www.peace-action.org](http://www.peace-action.org)

Peace Action is interested in NEPA documents relating to nuclear disarmament, testing, and stockpile stewardship issues. Identify state and local contacts potentially interested in a NEPA review at [www.peace-action.org/affiliates](http://www.peace-action.org/affiliates).

Mr. Kevin Martin  
President  
Peace Action Education Fund  
8630 Fenton Street, Suite 524  
Silver Spring, MD 20910  
301-565-4050 (ext. 307)  
[kmartin@peace-action.org](mailto:kmartin@peace-action.org)

### **Physicians for Social Responsibility**

[www.psr.org](http://www.psr.org)

Identify state and local contacts potentially interested in a NEPA review at [www.psr.org/chapters](http://www.psr.org/chapters).

Ms. Barbara Gottlieb  
Director, Environment & Health Program  
Physicians for Social Responsibility  
1111 14<sup>th</sup> Street, NW, Suite 700  
Washington, DC 20005  
202-587-5225  
[bgottlieb@psr.org](mailto:bgottlieb@psr.org)

**Prairie Rivers Network**

[www.prairierivers.org](http://www.prairierivers.org)

Ms. Tyler Rotche  
Water Policy Specialist  
Prairie Rivers Network  
1902 Fox Drive, Suite G  
Champaign, IL 61820

217-344-2371 (ext. 206)  
[trotche@prairierivers.org](mailto:trotche@prairierivers.org)

**Renewable Fuels Association**

[www.ethanolrfa.org](http://www.ethanolrfa.org)

The Renewable Fuels Association is interested in NEPA documents relating to fuel ethanol, renewable energy, and animal feed.

Ms. Missy Ruff  
Technical Services Manager  
Renewable Fuels Association  
425 Third Street, SW, Suite 1150  
Washington, DC 20024

(202) 289-3835  
[mruff@ethanolrfa.org](mailto:mruff@ethanolrfa.org)

**Savannah River Site Watch**

[www.srswatch.org](http://www.srswatch.org)

Mr. Tom Clements  
Director  
Savannah River Site Watch  
1112 Florence Street  
Columbia, SC 29201-1512

803-834-3084  
[tomclements329@cs.com](mailto:tomclements329@cs.com)

**Sierra Club**

[www.sierraclub.org](http://www.sierraclub.org)

Identify regional, state, and local contacts potentially interested in a NEPA review at [www.sierraclub.org/chapters](http://www.sierraclub.org/chapters).

Sierra Club  
National Headquarters  
2101 Webster St, Suite 1300  
Oakland, CA 94612

415-977-5500  
[information@sierraclub.org](mailto:information@sierraclub.org)

Sierra Club  
Legislative Office  
50 F Street, NW, 8<sup>th</sup> Floor  
Washington, DC 20001

202-547-1141  
[information@sierraclub.org](mailto:information@sierraclub.org)

**Snake River Alliance**

[www.snakeriveralliance.org](http://www.snakeriveralliance.org)

The Snake River Alliance is interested in NEPA documents relating to Idaho National Laboratory and weapons testing and test reactors.

Ms. Beatrice Brailsford  
Nuclear Program Director  
Snake River Alliance  
PO Box 425  
Pocatello, ID 83204

208-233-7212  
[bbrailsford@snakeriveralliance.org](mailto:bbrailsford@snakeriveralliance.org)

**Southwest Research and Information Center**

[www.sric.org](http://www.sric.org)

The Southwest Research and Information Center is interested in NEPA documents relating to waste management, environmental justice, energy conservation, and renewable energy.

Mr. Don Hancock  
Director, Nuclear Waste Safety Program  
and SRIC Administrator  
Southwest Research and Information Center  
PO Box 4524  
Albuquerque, NM 87196-4524

505-262-1862  
[sricdon@earthlink.net](mailto:sricdon@earthlink.net)

**Tennessee Wildlife Federation**

[www.tnwf.org](http://www.tnwf.org)

The Tennessee Wildlife Federation is interested in NEPA documents relating to conservation and permitting issues involving uranium enrichment and other nuclear programs in Tennessee, as well as surplus land sales and the retention, management, and protection of DOE lands and facilities.

Mr. Michael A. Butler  
Chief Executive Officer  
Tennessee Wildlife Federation  
300 Orlando Avenue, Suite 200  
Nashville, TN 37209

615-353-1133  
[mabutler@tnwf.org](mailto:mabutler@tnwf.org)

## Nongovernmental Organizations

### **Tri-Valley Communities Against a Radioactive Environment (Tri-Valley CAREs)**

[www.trivalleycares.org](http://www.trivalleycares.org)

Tri-Valley CAREs is interested in NEPA documents relating to defense programs, nuclear weapons and waste policies, environmental management and cleanup, and civilian science initiatives at the Lawrence Livermore National Laboratory.

Ms. Marylia Kelley  
Tri-Valley CAREs  
2582 Old First Street  
Livermore, CA 94550

925-443-7148  
[marylia@earthlink.net](mailto:marylia@earthlink.net)

### **Trout Unlimited**

[www.tu.org](http://www.tu.org)

Mr. Steve Moyer  
Vice President for Governmental Affairs  
Trout Unlimited  
1777 North Kent Street  
Arlington, VA 22209

703-284-9406  
[smoyer@tu.org](mailto:smoyer@tu.org)

### **Union of Concerned Scientists**

[www.ucsusa.org](http://www.ucsusa.org)

The Union of Concerned Scientists is interested in NEPA documents relating to climate change, renewable energy, and energy efficiency programs and nuclear nonproliferation, stockpile stewardship, fissile materials, and other DOE programs relating to nuclear arms control. Identify contacts potentially interested in a NEPA review at [www.ucsusa.org/about/contact-us.html](http://www.ucsusa.org/about/contact-us.html).

Mr. Edwin Lyman  
Senior Scientist, Global Security Program  
Union of Concerned Scientists  
1825 K Street, NW, Suite 800  
Washington, DC 20006

202-331-5445  
[elyman@ucsusa.org](mailto:elyman@ucsusa.org)

and

Mr. Stephen Young  
Global Security Program  
Union of Concerned Scientists  
1825 K Street, NW, Suite 800  
Washington, DC 20006

202-331-5429  
[syoung@ucsusa.org](mailto:syoung@ucsusa.org)

### **Utilities Technology Council**

<http://utc.org/>

Ms. Joy Ditto  
President and CEO  
Utilities Technology Council  
1129 20<sup>th</sup> Street, NW  
Suite 350  
Washington, DC 20036

202-833-6801  
[joy.ditto@utc.org](mailto:joy.ditto@utc.org)

### **Western Resource Advocates**

[www.westernresourceadvocates.org](http://www.westernresourceadvocates.org)

Western Resource Advocates is interested in NEPA documents relating to renewable energy, energy efficiency, energy transmission, and climate change.

Ms. Penny Anderson  
Energy Program  
Western Resource Advocates  
2260 Baseline Road, Suite 200  
Boulder, CO 80302-7740

720-763-3731  
[penny.anderson@westernresources.org](mailto:penny.anderson@westernresources.org)

### **The Wilderness Society**

[www.wilderness.org](http://www.wilderness.org)

The Wilderness Society is interested in NEPA documents relating to oil and gas exploration, energy efficiency, and environmental management. Identify regional contacts potentially interested in a NEPA review at <http://wilderness.org/about-us/connect>.

Ms. Nada Culver  
Senior Counsel and Director  
The Wilderness Society  
1660 Wynkoop Street, Suite 850  
Denver, CO 80202

303-225-4635  
[nada\\_culver@twc.org](mailto:nada_culver@twc.org)

## APPENDIX A: NEPA COMPLIANCE OFFICERS

A list of DOE NEPA Compliance Officers is provided at [energy.gov/nepa/downloads/doe-nepa-compliance-officers](http://energy.gov/nepa/downloads/doe-nepa-compliance-officers).

## APPENDIX B: DEPARTMENTAL POINTS OF CONTACT FOR AMERICAN INDIAN TRIBAL ISSUES

There are more than 550 federally recognized American Indian tribes and Alaska Native entities in the United States. A Tribal Leaders Directory (with a mapping tool) is provided on the Bureau of Indian Affairs website at <http://www.bia.gov/WhoWeAre/BIA/OIS/TribalGovernmentServices/TribalDirectory/index.htm>.

Assistance on coordination with tribes concerning NEPA and Section 106 matters is available from the DOE contacts listed below. Some DOE organizations have additional tribal contacts, not listed here, for other matters, such as financial assistance.

### **HEADQUARTERS**

#### **Congressional and Intergovernmental Affairs**

Mr. Francisco Carrillo  
Deputy Assistant Secretary for Intergovernmental  
& External Affairs  
Office of Congressional and Intergovernmental Affairs  
Department of Energy (CI-10)  
1000 Independence Avenue, SW  
Washington, DC 20585  
202-586-3655  
[francisco.carrillo@hq.doe.gov](mailto:francisco.carrillo@hq.doe.gov)

#### **Headquarters Federal Preservation Officer**

Dr. Eric Boyle  
Federal Preservation Officer  
Department of Energy (MA-75)  
1000 Independence Avenue, SW  
Washington, DC 20585  
202-586-5241  
[eric.boyle@hq.doe.gov](mailto:eric.boyle@hq.doe.gov)

#### **Electricity Delivery and Energy Reliability**

Mr. Eli Massey  
Director, Transmission Development  
Transmission, Permitting and Technical Assistance  
Division  
Department of Energy (OE-20)  
1000 Independence Avenue, SW  
Washington, DC 20585  
202-586-5935  
[eli.massey@hq.doe.gov](mailto:eli.massey@hq.doe.gov)

#### **Environment, Health, Safety and Security**

Ms. Beverly Whitehead  
Senior Environmental Protection Specialist  
Office of Sustainability Support  
Department of Energy (AU-21)  
1000 Independence Avenue, SW  
Washington, DC 20585  
202-586-6073  
[beverly.whitehead@hq.doe.gov](mailto:beverly.whitehead@hq.doe.gov)

#### **Environmental Management**

Mr. Albert (Brandt) Petrusek  
Department of Energy (EM-3.2)  
1000 Independence Avenue, SW  
Washington, DC 20585  
202-586-4818  
[albert.petrusek@em.doe.gov](mailto:albert.petrusek@em.doe.gov)

#### **Fossil Energy**

Mr. Mark Matarrese  
Department of Energy (FE-7)  
1000 Independence Avenue, SW  
Washington, DC 20585  
202-586-0491  
[mark.matarrese@hq.doe.gov](mailto:mark.matarrese@hq.doe.gov)



**General Counsel**

Mr. Dean Monroe  
Department of Energy (GC-51)  
1000 Independence Avenue, SW  
Washington, DC 20585

202-586-2948  
[dean.monroe@hq.doe.gov](mailto:dean.monroe@hq.doe.gov)

and

Ms. Rachel Rosenthal  
Department of Energy (GC-51)  
1000 Independence Avenue, SW  
Washington, DC 20585

202-586-0021  
[rachel.rosenthal@hq.doe.gov](mailto:rachel.rosenthal@hq.doe.gov)

**Legacy Management**

Primary Contact:

Mr. Tony Carter  
Senior Policy Advisor  
Department of Energy (LM-1)  
1000 Independence Avenue, SW  
Washington, DC 20585

202-586-3323  
[tony.carter@hq.doe.gov](mailto:tony.carter@hq.doe.gov)

Contact for the Navaho Nation and Hopi Tribe:

Dr. April Gil  
Team Lead - Environment Team 1  
Department of Energy (LM-20.1)  
2597 Legacy Way  
Grand Junction, CO 81503

970-248-6020  
[april.gil@lm.doe.gov](mailto:april.gil@lm.doe.gov)

**National Nuclear Security Administration**

Mr. Harrison Walker  
Director, Intergovernmental Affairs  
Department of Energy (NA-EA-30)  
1000 Independence Avenue, SW  
Washington, DC 20585

202-586-8929  
[harrison.walker@nnsa.doe.gov](mailto:harrison.walker@nnsa.doe.gov)

**FIELD OFFICES**

**Ames Site Office**

Mr. Peter Siebach  
NEPA Compliance Officer  
Integrated Support Center – Chicago Office  
Department of Energy  
9800 South Cass Avenue  
Argonne, IL 60439

630-252-2007  
[peter.siebach@science.doe.gov](mailto:peter.siebach@science.doe.gov)

**Argonne Site Office**

Ms. Katrina Burnett  
Cultural Resources Manager  
Argonne Site Office (ASO)  
Department of Energy  
9800 South Cass Avenue  
Argonne, IL 60439

630-252-2736  
[katrina.burnett@science.doe.gov](mailto:katrina.burnett@science.doe.gov)

and

Mr. Peter Siebach  
NEPA Compliance Officer  
Integrated Support Center – Chicago Office  
Department of Energy  
9800 South Cass Avenue  
Argonne, IL 60439

630-252-2007  
[peter.siebach@science.doe.gov](mailto:peter.siebach@science.doe.gov)

and

Mr. Kaushik Joshi  
NEPA Coordinator  
Argonne Site Office (ASO)  
Department of Energy  
9800 South Cass Avenue  
Argonne, IL 60439

630-252-4226  
[kaushik.joshi@science.doe.gov](mailto:kaushik.joshi@science.doe.gov)

**Bonneville Power Administration**

Mr. Kenneth H. Johnston  
Manager, Tribal Affairs  
Bonneville Power Administration  
Department of Energy  
PO Box 3621, DIT-7  
Portland, OR 97208

503-230-5069  
[khjohnston@bpa.gov](mailto:khjohnston@bpa.gov)



**Carlsbad Field Office**

Mr. Tim Runyon  
Public Affairs Specialist  
Department of Energy  
PO Box 3090  
Carlsbad, NM 88221-3090  
  
575-234-7545  
[tim.runyon@cbfo.doe.gov](mailto:tim.runyon@cbfo.doe.gov)

**Chicago Office  
(Science/Integrated Support Center)**

Mr. Peter Siebach  
NEPA Compliance Officer  
Integrated Support Center – Chicago Office  
Department of Energy  
9800 South Cass Avenue  
Argonne, IL 60439  
  
630-252-2007  
[peter.siebach@science.doe.gov](mailto:peter.siebach@science.doe.gov)

**Fermi Site Office**

Mr. Rick Hersemann  
NEPA Compliance Officer  
Fermi Site Office  
Department of Energy  
P.O. Box 2000  
Batavia, IL 60510  
  
630-840-4122  
[rick.hersemann@science.doe.gov](mailto:rick.hersemann@science.doe.gov)

**Golden Field Office  
(Office of Energy Efficiency and Renewable Energy)**

Ms. Lisa Jorgensen  
Environmental Policy Advisor  
Golden Field Office  
Department of Energy  
15013 Denver West Parkway  
Golden, CO 80401  
  
720-356-1569  
[lisa.jorgensen@ee.doe.gov](mailto:lisa.jorgensen@ee.doe.gov)

**Idaho Operations Office**

Mr. Robert Pence  
Idaho Operations Office  
Department of Energy  
1955 Fremont Avenue  
Idaho Falls, ID 83401-1203  
  
208-526-6518  
[pencerl@id.doe.gov](mailto:pencerl@id.doe.gov)

**Los Alamos Field Office**

See Headquarters National Nuclear Security Administration contact, above.

**National Energy Technology Laboratory**

Mr. Jesse Garcia  
National Energy Technology Laboratory  
Department of Energy  
PO Box 880  
3610 Collins Ferry Road  
Morgantown, WV 26507-0880  
  
304-285-0256  
[jesse.garcia@netl.doe.gov](mailto:jesse.garcia@netl.doe.gov)

**Nevada Field Office**

See Headquarters National Nuclear Security Administration contact, above.

**Oak Ridge Office  
(Science/Integrated Support Center)**

Ms. Katatra Vasquez  
Integrated Support Center – Oak Ridge, SE-32  
Department of Energy  
PO Box 2001  
Oak Ridge, TN 37831  
  
865-576-0835  
[katatra.vasquez@science.doe.gov](mailto:katatra.vasquez@science.doe.gov)

**Pacific Northwest Site Office**

Mr. Tom McDermott  
Environmental Program Manager  
Office of Science, Pacific Northwest Site Office  
3200 Innovation Boulevard  
P.O. Box 350, K9-42  
Richland, WA 99352  
  
509-372-4675  
[tom.mcdermott@science.doe.gov](mailto:tom.mcdermott@science.doe.gov)

**Princeton Site Office**

Mr. Peter Siebach  
NEPA Compliance Officer  
Integrated Support Center – Chicago Office  
Department of Energy  
9800 South Cass Avenue  
Argonne, IL 60439  
  
630-252-2007  
[peter.siebach@science.doe.gov](mailto:peter.siebach@science.doe.gov)  
  
and

## DOE Contacts for Tribal Issues

Mr. Tracy Estes  
Office of Science - Princeton Site Office  
Department of Energy  
P.O. Box 102, MS # 36  
Princeton, NJ 08542-0102  
  
609-243-3710  
[tracy.estes@science.doe.gov](mailto:tracy.estes@science.doe.gov)

### Richland Operations Office and Office of River Protection

Ms. Mona Wright  
Cultural Resources Manager  
Richland Operations Office, Mail Stop A7-75  
Department of Energy  
PO Box 550  
Richland, WA 99352  
  
509-376-4069  
[mona.wright@rl.doe.gov](mailto:mona.wright@rl.doe.gov)

and

Ms. Jill Conrad  
Tribal Program Manager  
Richland Operations Office, Mail Stop A7-75  
Department of Energy  
PO Box 550  
Richland, WA 99352  
  
509-376-0288  
[jill.conrad@rl.doe.gov](mailto:jill.conrad@rl.doe.gov)

### Sandia Field Office

See Headquarters National Nuclear Security  
Administration contact, above.

### Savannah River Operations Office

Mr. Dennis P. Ryan  
Acting Director  
Environmental Quality Management Division  
Department of Energy  
PO Box A  
Aiken, SC 29802  
  
803-952-7824  
[dennis.ryan@srs.gov](mailto:dennis.ryan@srs.gov)

### Southeastern Power Administration

Mr. Joel Seymour  
Assistant Administrator  
FOIA Officer/Public Liaison  
Southeastern Power Administration  
1166 Athens Tech Road  
Elberton, GA 30635-6711  
  
706-213-3810  
[joels@sepa.doe.gov](mailto:joels@sepa.doe.gov)

### Southwestern Power Administration

Mr. Aiden Smith  
Vice President, Transmission Strategy  
Southwestern Power Administration  
One West Third Street, Suite 1600  
Tulsa, OK 74103-3519

918-595-6764  
[aiden.smith@swpa.gov](mailto:aiden.smith@swpa.gov)

or

Mr. Danny Johnson  
Director of Maintenance  
Southwestern Power Administration  
Springfield, Missouri 65807  
  
417-891-2625  
[danny.johnson@swpa.gov](mailto:danny.johnson@swpa.gov)

### Strategic Petroleum Reserve Project Office

Ms. Katherine Batiste  
Strategic Petroleum Reserve Project Office  
Department of Energy  
900 Commerce Road East  
New Orleans, LA 70123  
  
504-734-4400  
[katherine.batiste@spr.doe.gov](mailto:katherine.batiste@spr.doe.gov)  
(After October 1, 2016, contact Headquarters, Office of  
Fossil Energy.)

### West Valley Demonstration Project

Ms. Jennifer M. Dundas  
West Valley Demonstration Project  
Department of Energy  
10282 Rock Springs Road  
West Valley, NY 14171-9799  
  
716-942-4287  
[jennifer.dundas@wv.doe.gov](mailto:jennifer.dundas@wv.doe.gov)

### Western Area Power Administration

Mr. Matthew Blevins  
Acting Federal Preservation Officer/Tribal Liaison  
Western Area Power Administration, A7400  
Department of Energy  
PO Box 281213  
Lakewood, CO 80228-8213  
  
720-962-7261  
[blevins@wapa.gov](mailto:blevins@wapa.gov)

## APPENDIX C: PUBLIC READING ROOMS AND LIBRARIES

This listing is intended to assist in making draft and final DOE NEPA documents available for general public access. Some offices maintain electronic collections of NEPA documents in addition to or instead of placing printed copies in reading rooms and libraries.

### Ames Site Office

Ames Site Office NEPA documents are available at <http://science.energy.gov/amso/nepa-documents/> and <https://www.ameslab.gov/operations/esha/environmental>.

### Argonne Site Office

Argonne Site Office NEPA documents are available at <http://science.energy.gov/aso/nepa-documents/>.

Lemont Public Library  
50 East Wend Street  
Lemont, IL 60439

Indian Prairie Public Library  
Reference Section  
401 Plainfield Road  
Darien, IL 60561

Conventional Reading Room (electronic access only)  
Argonne Information Center  
Argonne National Laboratory  
9700 S. Cass Avenue, Argonne, IL 6043

630-252-2041

### Berkeley Site Office

Berkeley Site Office NEPA documents are available at <http://science.energy.gov/bsa/nepa-documents/>.

Berkeley Central Public Library  
2090 Kittredge Street  
Berkeley, CA 94704

### Bonneville Power Administration

BPA NEPA documents are available at <https://www.bpa.gov/efw/Analysis/Pages/default.aspx>.

Bonneville Power Administration  
Department of Energy  
Public Information Center, NHTL-1  
PO Box 3621  
Portland, OR 97208-3621

503-230-4636 or 800-622-4520

### Brookhaven Site Office

Brookhaven Site Office NEPA documents are available at <http://science.energy.gov/bhso/nepa-documents/>.

EPA Region II  
Superfund Records Room  
290 Broadway, 18<sup>th</sup> Floor  
New York, NY 10007-1866

212-637-4308

Brookhaven National Laboratory  
Research Library, Building 477  
Upton, NY 11973

631-344-3483

Stony Brook University  
Melville Memorial Library  
Special Collections & University Archives  
Room E-2320  
Stony Brook, NY 11794-3323

631-632-7119

### Carlsbad Field Office

Carlsbad Field Office NEPA documents are available at [www.wipp.energy.gov/Documents\\_NEPA.htm](http://www.wipp.energy.gov/Documents_NEPA.htm).

WIPP Information Center Skeen-Whitlock Building  
DOE/Carlsbad Field Office  
4021 National Parks Highway  
Carlsbad, NM 88220

800-336-9477 or 575-234-7348

[infocntr@wipp.ws](mailto:infocntr@wipp.ws)

### Chicago Office (Science/Integrated Support Center)

Integrated Support Center NEPA documents for both Chicago and Oak Ridge Offices are available at <http://science.energy.gov/isc/nepa-documents/>.

Conventional Reading Room (electronic access only)  
Argonne Information Center  
Argonne National Laboratory  
9700 S. Cass Avenue, Argonne, IL 6043

630-252-2041

## Reading Rooms and Libraries

### Energy Technology Engineering Center Closure Project

ETEC's NEPA document information is available at  
[http://www.etc.energy.gov/Char\\_Cleanup/EIS.html](http://www.etc.energy.gov/Char_Cleanup/EIS.html).

Department of Toxic Substances Control  
9211 Oakdale Avenue  
Chatsworth, CA 91311

818-717-6569

Platt Branch Library  
23600 Victory Boulevard  
Woodland Hills, CA 91367

818-340-9386

Simi Valley Library  
2969 Tapo Canyon Road  
Simi Valley, CA 93063

805-526-1735

### Fermi Site Office

Fermi Site Office NEPA documents are available at  
<http://science.energy.gov/fso/nepa-documents/>.

Batavia Public Library  
10 S. Batavia Avenue  
Batavia, IL 60510

Warrenville Public Library District  
28W751 Stafford Place  
Warrenville, IL 60555

Fermi National Accelerator Laboratory  
Library  
Wilson Hall, 3<sup>rd</sup> Floor  
Kirk Road and Pine Street  
Batavia, IL 60510

### Golden Field Office (Office of Energy Efficiency and Renewable Energy)

Golden Field Office NEPA documents are available at  
<http://energy.gov/eere/golden-field-office-reading-room>.

DOE Public Reading Room  
Golden Field Office  
Mail Stop RSF DOE  
15013 Denver West Parkway  
Golden, CO 80401

720-356-1427

or

Ms. Michele Altieri  
Golden FOIA Officer

720-356-1427

[michele.altieri@ee.doe.gov](mailto:michele.altieri@ee.doe.gov)

### Idaho Operations Office

Idaho Operations Office NEPA documents are available at

<https://www.inl.gov/about-inl/general-information/doe-public-reading-room/>

Idaho Operations Office  
Department of Energy  
Public Reading Room  
2251 N Blvd.  
Idaho Falls, ID 83402

208-526-5190

### Kansas City Field Office

Kansas City Field Office NEPA documents are included in NNSA's NEPA website,

<http://nnsa.energy.gov/aboutus/ouoperations/generalco/unsel/nepaoverview/nepa>.

### Legacy Management

Legacy Management NEPA documents are available at  
[http://www.lm.doe.gov/Office\\_of\\_Site\\_Operations/Environmental\\_Management\\_System/NEPA.aspx](http://www.lm.doe.gov/Office_of_Site_Operations/Environmental_Management_System/NEPA.aspx). Legacy Management also uses site-specific reading rooms as appropriate. For additional information, contact the NEPA Compliance Officer.

Ms. Tracy Ribeiro  
303-410-4817  
[tracy.ribeiro@lm.doe.gov](mailto:tracy.ribeiro@lm.doe.gov)

### Livermore Field Office

Livermore Field Office NEPA documents are available at <https://www-envirinfo.llnl.gov/>.

Public Document Repository  
Lawrence Livermore National Laboratory  
National Nuclear Security Administration  
Discovery Center; Building 6525  
Livermore, CA 94550

925-423-3272

Livermore Public Library  
1188 South Livermore Avenue  
Livermore, CA 94550

925-373-5500

Tracy Public Library  
20 East Eaton Avenue  
Tracy, CA 95376

209-937-8221 or 866-805-7323

### Los Alamos Field Office

Los Alamos Field Office documents are available at [http://nnsa.energy.gov/aboutus/ouoperations/generalco\\_unsel/nepaoverview/nepa/lafo](http://nnsa.energy.gov/aboutus/ouoperations/generalco_unsel/nepaoverview/nepa/lafo).

DOE Public Reading Room  
Government Information Department  
Zimmerman Library, Mail Stop C05 3020  
University of New Mexico  
Albuquerque, NM 87131-1466

505-277-7180

Los Alamos National Laboratory  
Environmental Public Reading Room  
c/o Northern New Mexico Citizens Advisory Board  
94 Cities of Gold Road  
Pojoaque, NM 87506

505-667-0216

### National Energy Technology Laboratory

National Energy Technology Laboratory (NETL)  
NEPA documents are available at <http://www.netl.doe.gov/library>.

### National Nuclear Security Administration

NNSA NEPA documents are available at [http://nnsa.energy.gov/aboutus/ouoperations/generalco\\_unsel/nepaoverview/nepa](http://nnsa.energy.gov/aboutus/ouoperations/generalco_unsel/nepaoverview/nepa).

### National Nuclear Security Administration Albuquerque Complex

NNSA Albuquerque Complex NEPA documents are included in NNSA's NEPA website, [http://nnsa.energy.gov/aboutus/ouoperations/generalco\\_unsel/nepaoverview/nepa](http://nnsa.energy.gov/aboutus/ouoperations/generalco_unsel/nepaoverview/nepa).

DOE Public Reading Room  
Government Information Department  
University of New Mexico  
Zimmerman Library, Mail Stop C05 3020  
Albuquerque, NM 87131-1466

505-277-7180

### National Nuclear Security Administration Production Office

**Pantex Site** NEPA documents are available at <http://www.pantex.com/mission/Pages/Environmental-Compliance-Documents.aspx>.

Department of Energy Information Repository  
Amarillo Public Library, Central Branch  
413 E. 4th Street  
Amarillo, TX 79101

806-378-3054

Department of Energy Reading Room  
Carson County Library  
401 Main Street  
Panhandle, TX 79068

806-537-3742

**Y-12 National Security Complex** NEPA documents are included in NNSA's NEPA website, [http://nnsa.energy.gov/aboutus/ouoperations/generalco\\_unsel/nepaoverview/nepa](http://nnsa.energy.gov/aboutus/ouoperations/generalco_unsel/nepaoverview/nepa).

DOE Information Center  
Oak Ridge Office  
Department of Energy  
1 Science.gov Way  
Oak Ridge, TN 37831

865-241-4780 or 800-382-6938, Option 6  
[doeic@science.doe.gov](mailto:doeic@science.doe.gov)

### Nevada Field Office

Nevada Site Office NEPA documents are available at <http://www.nv.doe.gov/emprograms/compliance.aspx>.

Public Reading Room  
Nevada Field Office  
Department of Energy  
755 East Flamingo Road, Room 103  
Las Vegas, NV 89119

702-794-5106

### Oak Ridge Office (Science/Integrated Support Center)

Oak Ridge Office NEPA documents are available at <http://science.energy.gov/isc/nepa-documents/>.

DOE Information Center  
Oak Ridge Office  
Department of Energy  
1 Science.gov Way  
Oak Ridge, TN 37831

865-241-4780 or 800-382-6938, Option 6  
[doeic@science.doe.gov](mailto:doeic@science.doe.gov)

## Reading Rooms and Libraries

### Oak Ridge National Laboratory Site Office

Oak Ridge National Laboratory Site Office NEPA documents are available at <http://science.energy.gov/oso/nepa-documents/>.

DOE Information Center  
Oak Ridge Office  
Department of Energy  
1 Science.gov Way  
Oak Ridge, TN 37831

865-241-4780 or 800-382-6938, Option 6  
[doeic@science.doe.gov](mailto:doeic@science.doe.gov)

### Pacific Northwest Site Office

Pacific Northwest Site Office NEPA documents are available at <http://science.energy.gov/pnso/nepa-documents/>.

### Portsmouth/Paducah Project Office

Portsmouth/Paducah NEPA documents are available at <http://energy.gov/pppo/compliance-documents>.

DOE Environmental Information Center  
115 Memorial Drive  
Paducah, KY 42001

270-554-3004

Portsmouth Gaseous Diffusion Plant documents are available at:

DOE Environmental Information Center  
Portsmouth Gaseous Diffusion Plant  
Ohio State University, Endeavor Center  
1862 Shyville Road, Room 207  
Piketon, OH 45661

740-289-8898 or 740-897-3808  
[portseic@pma-iss.com](mailto:portseic@pma-iss.com)

### Princeton Site Office

Princeton Site Office NEPA documents are available at <http://science.energy.gov/psa/nepa-documents/>.

Plainsboro Public Library  
641 Plainsboro Road  
Plainsboro, NJ 08536

609-275-2897

### Richland Operations Office and Office of River Protection

NEPA documents are available at [www.hanford.gov/page.cfm/Documents](http://www.hanford.gov/page.cfm/Documents).

DOE-RL Public Reading Room  
Washington State University  
Consolidated Information Center, Room 101-L  
2770 University Drive  
Richland, WA 99352

509-372-7443

Public Access Room  
2440 Stevens Center, Room 1101  
PO Box 950, Mail Stop H6-08  
Richland, WA 99352

509-376-2530

Suzzallo Library  
University of Washington  
PO Box 352900  
Seattle, WA 98195

206-543-4664

Gonzaga University  
Foley Center Library  
East 502 Boone Ave.  
Spokane, WA 99258-0001

509-313-6110

Portland State University  
Branford Price Millar Library  
1875 SW Park Avenue  
Portland, OR 97207-1151

503-725-4709

### Sandia Field Office

Sandia Field Office NEPA documents are available at <http://nnsa.energy.gov/aboutus/ouoperations/generalco/unsel/nepaoverview/nepa/sandianepa>.

DOE Public Reading Room  
Government Information Department  
University of New Mexico  
Zimmerman Library, Mail Stop C05 3020  
Albuquerque, NM 87131-1466

505-277-7180

### **Savannah River Operations Office**

Savannah River Operations Office NEPA documents are available at <http://www.srs.gov/general/pubs/envbul/nepa1.htm>.

Gregg-Graniteville Library  
University of South Carolina-Aiken  
471 University Parkway  
Aiken, SC 29801

803-641-3320

### **Southeastern Power Administration**

Southeastern Power Administration  
Department of Energy  
Public Reading Room  
1166 Athens Tech Road  
Elberton, GA 30635-6711

Mr. Joel Seymour  
706-213-3810  
[joels@sepa.doe.gov](mailto:joels@sepa.doe.gov)

### **Southwestern Power Administration**

Southwestern's NEPA documents are available at [www.swpa.gov/nepa-cx-determination.aspx](http://www.swpa.gov/nepa-cx-determination.aspx).

### **Stanford National Accelerator Laboratory (SLAC) Site Office**

Stanford National Accelerator Laboratory (SLAC)  
NEPA documents are available at <http://science.energy.gov/sso/nepa-documents/>.

Menlo Park Library  
800 Alma Street  
Menlo Park, CA 94025

### **Strategic Petroleum Reserve Project Office**

Reading Room/Technical Document Center  
Strategic Petroleum Reserve Project Office  
850 South Clearview Parkway, 1<sup>st</sup> Floor  
New Orleans, LA 70123

504-734-4400

### **Thomas Jefferson National Accelerator Facility**

NEPA documents are available at <http://science.energy.gov/tjso/nepa-documents/>.

Public Reading Area  
c/o Public Affairs  
12000 Jefferson Avenue, Suite 15  
Newport News, VA 23606-4468

### **West Valley Demonstration Project**

West Valley Demonstration Project NEPA documents are available at: [www.wv.doe.gov](http://www.wv.doe.gov) under "Document Index" (under the Documents menu).

### **Western Area Power Administration**

Western Area Power Administration NEPA Documents are available on these websites:

#### **Infrastructure maintenance and upgrades:**

[www.wapa.gov/transmission/EnvironmentalReviewNEPA/Pages/environmental-review-nepa.aspx](http://www.wapa.gov/transmission/EnvironmentalReviewNEPA/Pages/environmental-review-nepa.aspx)

#### **Interconnection projects:**

[www.wapa.gov/transmission/interconnection/Pages/interconnection-projects.aspx](http://www.wapa.gov/transmission/interconnection/Pages/interconnection-projects.aspx)

#### **Desert Southwest Region:**

[www.wapa.gov/regions/DSW/Environment/Pages/environment.aspx](http://www.wapa.gov/regions/DSW/Environment/Pages/environment.aspx)

#### **Rocky Mountain Region:**

[www.wapa.gov/regions/RM/environment/Pages/environment.aspx](http://www.wapa.gov/regions/RM/environment/Pages/environment.aspx)

#### **Sierra Nevada Region:**

[www.wapa.gov/regions/SN/environment/Pages/environment.aspx](http://www.wapa.gov/regions/SN/environment/Pages/environment.aspx)

#### **Upper Great Plains Region:**

[www.wapa.gov/ugp/environment/](http://www.wapa.gov/ugp/environment/)

#### **Colorado River Storage Project Management Center:**

[www.wapa.gov/regions/CRSP/environment/Pages/environment.aspx](http://www.wapa.gov/regions/CRSP/environment/Pages/environment.aspx)

Department of Energy Reading Room  
12155 West Alameda Parkway, Suite 365  
Lakewood, CO 80228

720-962-7014



## INDEX OF PERSONS LISTED

Abkowitz, Kendra .....	22	Coit, Janet .....	21
Adams, Thomas .....	26	Conrad, Jill .....	40
Agrawal, Parag .....	21	Copeland, Tracy .....	16
Albright, David .....	31	Crandall, Derrick .....	27
Amaglio, Alessandro .....	5	Cronmiller, Rae .....	32
Anaya, Gilbert .....	14	Cruz, Yvette .....	17
Anderson, Penny .....	36	Culver, Nada .....	36
Angel, Bradley .....	30	Cunningham, Cathy .....	7
Arends, Joni .....	29	D'Arrigo, Diane .....	33
Axelson, Tessa .....	10	Degnitz, Glenn .....	7
Ball, Sarah .....	29	DeGrandi, Michelle .....	10
Ballo, Timothy .....	29	Desai, Ashish .....	13
Batiste, Katherine .....	40	Dillen, Jeffrey .....	2
Bauman Tyran, Barbara .....	29	Ditto, Joy .....	36
Bean, Craig .....	22	Drevinsky, David .....	12
Belenky, Lisa .....	28	Dundas, Jennifer .....	40
Benderson, Eric .....	15	DuVarney, Andrée .....	1
Blanco, Caroline .....	14	Eberlein, Mark .....	5
Blevins, Matthew .....	40	Emme, Nick .....	21
Bliss, Robert .....	13	Empson, Kenny .....	13
Bloom, Raanan .....	3	Eng, Esther .....	8
Bole, Everett .....	3	Estes, Tracy .....	40
Bonnett, Lisa .....	18	Fayad, Libby .....	32
Book, Hayley .....	21	Ferguson, Charles .....	30
Boomgard, Mary .....	15	Ferguson, Robin .....	7
Boyle, Eric .....	37	Fitzgerald, Amy .....	22
Bragg, Kelly .....	23	Flanders, Scott .....	15
Brailsford, Beatrice .....	35	Flinn, Joyce .....	18
Broschious, Chuck .....	30	Flynn, Ryan .....	20
Brown, Chuck Carr .....	19	Forbes, Eugene .....	20
Brown, Patrick .....	28	Foreso, Cynthia .....	14
Brown, Theodore .....	2	Friedman, David .....	27
Brumback, William .....	33	Fuller, Nell .....	1
Buchanan, Sharunda .....	3	Galbraith, Maury .....	25
Buckley, Deirdre .....	19	Garcia, Jesse .....	39
Bullen, Victor .....	15	Gellici, Janet .....	32
Burke, Susan .....	18	Gil, April .....	38
Burke, Thomas .....	13	Glenn, Scott .....	17
Burnett, Katrina .....	38	Goldtooth, Tom .....	31
Bush, Jack .....	2	Goodfellow, Sue .....	3
Buthker, Bonnie .....	20	Gosliner, Michael .....	14
Butler, Michael .....	35	Gottlieb, Barbara .....	34
Byrd, Carla .....	32	Govig, Paul .....	20
Callahan, Kateri .....	26	Grant, Carol .....	21
Canfield, Skip .....	20	Gray, John .....	20
Carmichael, Karla .....	13	Greenwald, Janet .....	28
Carpenter, Tom .....	30	Gusky, Martin .....	12, 14
Carrillo, Francisco .....	37	Hamlett, Stephanie .....	14
Carroll, Glenn .....	34	Hancock, Don .....	35
Carter, Tony .....	38	Hanson, Carolyn .....	24
Cecchini, J. Dan .....	3	Hardegen, Steve .....	5
Clark, Louis .....	30	Harvey-Barratt, Thea .....	29
Clements, Tom .....	35	Hass, Jennifer .....	4
Coghlan, Jay .....	26, 34	Hassell, Mary .....	8



Hawkins, David.....	33	Meehan, Lorraine.....	10
Hein, Erik.....	24	Mello, Greg.....	31
Hersemann, Rick.....	39	Mendivil, Gary.....	16
Hoernemann, Courtenay.....	13	Mercer, Paul.....	19
Hug, Edward.....	19	Merritt, Elizabeth.....	33
Hutchison, Ralph.....	34	Miles, Ann.....	12
Inos, Thelma.....	20	Miller, Christopher.....	15
Jadrosich, Megan.....	4	Mitchell, John.....	18
Janey, Linda.....	19	Mittelholtz, Camille.....	8
Jansky, Michael.....	11	Mondani, Glen.....	9
Jaynes, Kevin.....	5	Monroe, Dean.....	38
Johnson, Danny.....	40	Moran, Thomas.....	9
Johnson, Michael.....	28	Morgan, Scott.....	16
Johnson, Philip.....	6	Moyer, Steve.....	36
Johnston, Edward.....	30	Mueller, Heinz.....	11
Johnston, Kenneth.....	38	Mueller, Nicholas.....	4
Jones, Jessica.....	31	Musumeci, Grace.....	10
Jorgensen, Lisa.....	39	Nasca, Jack.....	20
Joshi, Kaushik.....	38	Nelson, John.....	6
Kadri, Osmahn.....	13	Nelson, Lindy.....	6
Kaliszewski, Robert.....	17	Nelson, Reid.....	10
Karimi, Hamid.....	17	Nemeth, Kenneth.....	25
Katz, Aliza.....	12	Nicholson, Charles.....	15
Kelley, Kebby.....	4	Nolen, Janice.....	27
Kelley, Marylia.....	36	Norris, Michael.....	8
Kelly, Cheryl.....	14	Norwood, Tina.....	14
Kelly, Russell.....	16	Nwangwa, Chudi.....	22
Kennedy, Kit.....	33	O'Brien, Allison.....	6
Kirshenberg, Seth.....	29	Olsen, Margaret.....	32
Klinger, Joseph.....	18	Olson, Mary.....	34
Knight, Kelly.....	3	Pacenza, Matt.....	31
Kovac, Scott.....	34	Pata, Jacqueline.....	32
Kraus, Bambi.....	24	Patton, Vickie.....	30
Krupen, Russell.....	9	Peaks, Harold.....	9
Kubena, Kellie.....	1	Pence, Robert.....	39
Lamb, Ronald.....	3	Pereira, Amanda.....	12
Lewandowski, Jill.....	7	Perez, Carmen Guerrero.....	21
Linden, Stacy.....	27	Peters, Jennifer.....	28
Littleton, Teena.....	12	Petrasek, Albert (Brandt).....	25, 37
Lucca-Amador, Massiel.....	13	Pica, Erich.....	30
Lyman, Edwin.....	36	Pohlman, Teresa.....	3
Lynch, Scott.....	26	Pollet, Gerald.....	31
Lyon, Jim.....	33	Powell Tyler.....	21
Madson, Stephanie.....	4	Powell, Jimmie.....	33
Makhijani, Arjun.....	31	Power, Meg.....	32
Malloy, Sharon.....	13	Price, Ronald.....	19
Malo, Bonnie.....	20	Raddant, Andrew.....	6
Marcus-Kurn, Joel.....	12	Recchia, Christopher.....	22
Markell, Brad.....	26	Richardson, Stephanie.....	25
Martin, Kerry.....	18	Rieman, Jerimiah.....	23
Martin, Kevin.....	34	Rikard, Gary.....	19
Martin, Lee.....	12	Robbins, David.....	4
Massey, Eli.....	37	Roberts, Anita.....	22
Matarrese, Mark.....	37	Rockensuess, Brian.....	18
McClung, Terry.....	7	Rodgers, Kerry.....	7
McConnell, Sheila.....	8	Rogers, Harry.....	28
McDermott, Tom.....	39	Rosenberg, Erica.....	12
McManus, Catherine.....	4	Rosenthal, Rachel.....	38

Rosenthal, Wayne.....	18	Stanley, Joyce .....	6
Rotche, Tyler .....	35	Steward, Lisa .....	33
Rountree, Marthea.....	10	Stewart, Robert.....	6
Rudnick, Barbara.....	10	Stockwell, Hope .....	19
Rudolph, Martha.....	16	Stout, Robert.....	19
Ruff, Missy.....	35	Strobel, Philip.....	11
Runyon, Tim.....	39	Sullivan, Bettina .....	22
Rutson, Victoria .....	9	Sutker, Eileen .....	1
Ryan, Dennis .....	40	Sweeney, Katie .....	32
Sanderson, Patricia .....	7	Sysum,Scott .....	11
Sarna, Maya.....	9	Szvetecz, Annie .....	23
Schar, Steven.....	22	Tambini, Steven.....	24
Schima, Stephen.....	34	Tapia, Cecilia.....	11
Schoonover, William.....	9	Tapp, Joshua.....	11
Schopp, Danielle .....	5	Tappert, John .....	15
Schroeder, Darin.....	26	Timmermann, Timothy.....	10
Scolari, Christopher.....	25	Tormey, Ed .....	18
Scott, Tricia.....	20	Toth, Chris.....	24
Sessa, Ken .....	5	Treichel, Lisa.....	5
Seuffert, Will.....	19	Trotter, Tom .....	26
Seymour, Joel.....	40	Tupas, Luis .....	1
Shader, Eileen.....	27	Vasquez, Katatra.....	39
Shepard, Larry.....	11	Vaughan, Myles.....	13
Shepherd, Pete.....	21	Vise, Ryan .....	22
Siebach, Peter .....	38, 39	Wade, Peggy.....	1
Siebert, David.....	23	Walker, Harris .....	38
Siegel, Kassie .....	28	Walsh, Patrick.....	7
Simmons, Daniel .....	31	Waterhouse, Desmarie.....	27
Simonton, Barty .....	17	Wertz, Dave .....	29
Small, David.....	17	Westlake, Kenneth.....	11
Smalls, Jim .....	1	Whitaker, Alex .....	24
Smith, Aiden.....	40	Whitehead, Beverly .....	37
Smith, Lisa .....	2	Wilson, Shelly .....	21
Smith, Sindy .....	22	Woods, Tracey.....	26
Solomon, Rhonda .....	8	Wright, Mona .....	40
Sotoa, Ali'itama .....	16	Young, Stephen .....	36
Spencer, Shemika .....	24	Zeller, Louis .....	27
Spencer, Stephen .....	6	Zendri, Sherri.....	16
Stahl, Chris.....	17		